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Council acknowledges and pays
respect to the Darumbal and
Woppaburra people as Traditional
Custodians of the land within
Livingstone and recognise their

continuing connection to land,

waters and culture.

We pay our respects to Elders
past, present and emerging.




MESSAGE FROM MAYOR

Reflecting on Our Progress and the Path Forward

Dear Residents and Stakeholders,

I am honoured to present Livingstone Shire Council's Annual Report for 2024. This year has been a time of significant achievements for

our Council, but while we have reason to celebrate, there remains much work to do as we move forward in this term.

Firstly, I'd like to acknowledge the contributions and hard work of the previous Mayor, Andy Ireland, and former Councillor, Clint
Swadling. Their dedication to their respective roles within the local community is well-known by all, and I'd like to thank them for
everything they've done for the community. On the same note, I'd also like to welcome Councillor Lance Warcon and Councillor
Wade Rothery to the Council table. They have already shown their dedication and tenacity in their roles as new Councillors, and | look

forward to seeing how their input will no doubt benefit the community theyve chosen to represent.

Our community, like many others, has faced tough external challenges this year, including rising living costs, interest rates, and
inflationary pressures. Council, too, has felt these impacts, but we are tackling these hurdles with resilience and a firm commitment to

delivering for our residents. | hope this determination gives our community confidence that we are working tirelessly to find solutions.

In July, we adopted this Council's first budget — a $168.1 million plan that prioritises economic sustainability for Livingstone’s
ratepayers. | am proud to lead a Council that has delivered a modest increase in residential rates and charges of 3.26%, equivalent
to just $3.00 per week for the average household. Additionally, we are reducing Council’s debt by $6.172 million, bringing it down
to $42.371 million, with no further borrowings planned for 2024-25. This strong financial footing, paired with an operating deficit of
only $0.174 million, is part of our effort to keep rates and charges manageable, ensuring ratepayers can trust in our prudent financial
management. Balancing a budget while maintaining 700km of sealed roads, 760km of unsealed roads, stormwater and sewerage

infrastructure, and bridges is no small feat, yet we remain steadfast in delivering quality services.

Our region's economy continues to grow, evidenced by the registration of 378 new businesses and record-breaking domestic tourism
with over 1.3 million overnight stays in 2022-2023. Livingstone Shire’s population also increased beyond the state average, reaching

41,906 - a clear sign that our region is an attractive place to live and work.

We are fortunate to see so many new residents choosing Livingstone Shire as their home, but this growth also brings heightened
demand for services and higher community expectations. Our $47.8 million investment in capital works this year is aimed at meeting
these needs, with crucial upgrades to roads, water, waste management, and land development. The expansion of our population

underscores the appeal of Livingstone’s vibrant lifestyle, job opportunities, and the promise of new and emerging industries.

This Annual Report provides a thorough review of the Council's progress and an honest reflection on the challenges we've faced. |
encourage you fo take the time o explore it and learn more about the work your Council is doing to secure a prosperous future for our
region.

Thank you for your continued support as we work together to build a thriving future for Livingstone Shire.

Warm Regards,

Adam Belot
Mayor




The role of Councillors is to represent the community. They make decisions that benefit the whole of Livingstone Shire, now and
into the future. Livingstone Shire Council is represented by the Mayor and six Councillors. Our Councillors represent all areas
of the Shire as Livingstone is an undivided local government area.

Livingstone Shire Councillors (from left to right] Councillor Pat Eastwood, Councillor Glenda Mather, Councillor Wade Rothery,
Mayor Adam Belot, Councillor Rhodes Watson, Councillor Andrea Friend, and Councillor Lance Warcon.

Mayor Adam Belot
mayor@livingstone.qld.gov.au | Mobile 0459 101 130

Deputy Mayor Pat Eastwood

Development & Environment Committee Co-Chair

pat.eastwood@livingstone.qgld.gov.au | Mobile 0437 410 833

Councillor Andrea Friend
Recreation & Culture Committee Co-Chair

andrea.friend@livingstone.qld.gov.au | Mobile 0459 392 411

Councillor Glenda Mather

Infrastructure Committee Co-Chair
glenda.mather@livingstone.qgld.gov.au | Mobile 0437 647 573

Councillor Wade Rothery

Development & Environment Committee Co-Chair

wade.rothery@livingstone.qgld.gov.au | Mobile 0447 875 446

Councillor Lance Warcon
Recreation & Culture Committee Co-Chair

lance.warcon@livingstone.qgld.gov.au | Mobile 0475 106 990

Councillor Rhodes Watson
Infrastructure Committee Co-Chair

rhodes.watson@livingstone.qld.gov.au | Mobile 0448 403 243
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Council Activities and Performance

Corporate Plan and Operational Plan Annual Progress

The Corporate Plan 2030 is structured around the five themes of the Community Plan being Thriving Livingstone, Natural
Livingstone, Leading Livingstone, Future Livingstone and Liveable Livingstone. For each theme the Corporate Plan nominates
goals, what we will do and performance indicators.

The Plan assists Council to monitor performance, remain on track and meet Council’s legislative requirements of the Local

Government Act 2009.

The Corporate Plan is implemented over its ten year lifespan through annual operational plans and budgets. Livingstone
Shire Council’s Operational Plan 2023-2024 identified programmes, activities and targets for Council to deliver within the
financial year in order to progress implementation of the Corporate Plan’s goals, strategies and established priorities.

Of the 70 Operational Plan targets:

» 51 (73%) were completed;
» 19 (27)% are to be deferred.

Corporate Plan and Operational Plan Scorecard

[ Completed
B o be deferred

Refer to Ordinary Council Meeting 20 August 2024 for the 4th Quarter Operational Plan 2023-2024 Performance Report.
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https://www.livingstone.qld.gov.au/downloads/file/3727/ordinary-council-meeting-unconfirmed-minutes-20-august-2024

Council Activities

Pursuant to sections 45 and 47 of the Local Government Act 2009, each financial year Council is required to identify those
activities that are business activities and determine whether competition reform needs to be applied to assist in removing
anti-competitive conduct, encourage greater transparency in the operation of Council’s business activities and improve the
allocation of Council’s limited resources. Activities of Council will be identified as business activities if they trade in goods
and services to clients and could potentially be delivered by a private sector firm for the purposes of earning profits in the
absence of Council’s involvement. They do not include activities of Council considered non-competitive.

Council reviewed its operations in the lead up to the 2023-2024 financial year and applied the Code of Competitive
Conduct during the year to the following three (3) Business Activities:

» Water and sewerage services;
»  Waste and recycling services; and

» Building certification.

Audit, Risk & Improvement Committee

The primary objective of the Audit, Risk & Improvement Committee (Committee) is to provide independent assurance and
assistance to Council through oversight of accounting, auditing, governance, risk and control activities, and reporting
requirements imposed under the Local Government Act 2009 and other relevant legislation.

Membership and meeting attendance of the Committee for the 2023-2024 financial year was:

* Meetings

CURRENT MEMBERS
’ Independent Member 1 March 2023 28 February 2026
Rt Independent Chair 21 June 2023 20 June 2026 4
Independent Member 18 February 2019 21 February 2021
- Independent Chair (Interim) 22 February 2021 20 June 2021
i by s Independent Chair 21 June 2021 20 June 2023 6
Independent Member (reappointment) 21 June 2023 28 February 2024
. Independent Member 18 May 2021 18 May 2024
Wl e (Member extension) 19 May 2024 31 March 2025 4
Mr Jeff Stewart-Harris Independent Member 12 February 2024 11 February 2027 3
Councillor Rhodes Watson  Council Member Representative 20 September 2022 19 September 2028 6
Councillor Pat Eastwood Council Member Representative 20 September 2022 19 September 2028 7

*'Meetings attended’ includes 4 x standard meetings, 2 x Flying Minutes and 1 x Strategic Planning Workshop

The Comnmittee is well supported by Council including the Chief Executive Officer who assumes the role of Chief Audit
Executive, the Chief Financial Officer, Executive Leadership Team, Governance, Pacifica Pty Ltd (Internal Auditors), and the

Queensland Audit Office.

During 2023-2024 quorum was reached for all meetings which were held on18 September 2023, 4 December 2023,
12 February 2024, and 6 June 2024.

Flying minutes were also facilitated on 1 September 2023 (to review the unaudited 2022-2023 Financial Statements and
endorse that they be provided to the Auditor-General), and on 20 October 2023 (to receive the unaudited 2022-2023
General Purpose Financial Statements; and to recommend that the Mayor and Chief Executive Officer sign the Management
Representation Letter and sign the final 2022-2023 audited General Purpose Financial Statements).

The Committee also participated in a Strategic Planning Workshop on 12 and 13 February 2024, with a site visit undertaken
on Council’s capital works project for the Cooee Bay Aquatic Centre.

LIVINGSTONE SHIRE COUNCIL 2023-2024 ANNUAL REPORT 6



The Committee performed its functions and responsibilities, as outlined in the Audit, Risk & Improvement Committee Charter
and Terms of Reference.

The Committee reviewed the draft 2022-2023 Statutory Financial Statements, making appropriate enquiries of management
to satisfy itself that compliance has been achieved in accordance with the Local Government Act 2009 and Local
Government Regulation 2012.

The Committee provides oversight to Council’s Control Framework and observed those key internal controls operated soundly
during 2023-2024. The Committee also observed that weaknesses in the application of internal controls reported by the
Internal or External Auditors are planned to be resolved by management in a reasonably timely manner. The Committee
continued to monitor progress against Council’s Policy Framework Project which aims to improve Council’s approach to
managing policy reviews. Council’s ICT Security & Controls was monitored by the Committee, with oversight on the status of
controls for identified known risks that have been implemented as part of the Security Continuous Improvement Roadmap.
Financial controls continued to be monitored with review of reports associated with Asset Management (revaluation,
capitalisation, sustainability, consumption, and maturity), accounting position papers, and fraud management.

The Committee continued to monitor the performance of the Internal Audit function and notes partial completion of projects
against the approved 2023-2024 Annual Internal Audit Plan. The Committee reviewed internal audit reports on completed
projects for ‘Grants Management Practices’, and ‘Conflicts of Interest & Related Parties Disclosure Management'. Internal
audit projects for ‘Data Analytics, and ‘Software Acquisition & Licencing’ are noted as in-progress against the Plan and
scheduled for deferred finalisation in Quarter 1 of the 2024-2025 financial year.

Queensland Audit Office assumed the statutory role of appointed External Auditors to Council. The Committee supported

the work associated with preparing and finalising the financial statements and reviewing management's letter ensuring
appropriate corrective action was established. The Committee also reviewed External Audit reports for ‘Human Services
Quality Framework (Strengthening Family Connections & Youth Services); and Local Government Workcare Mutual’s ‘Safety
Management System Review'.

The Committee assumes responsibility for providing assurance that Council is effectively identifying, evaluating and managing
its key risks. The Enterprise Risk Management framework continued to evolve during the year under the Risk Management
Maturity Advancement Project, with Council’s risk profile reviewed and a revised Enterprise Risk Management Policy
adopted by Council on 20 February 2024. Council’s risk maturity continues to be monitored. The Committee also reviewed
an operational risk report on Event Safety, acknowledging it as a high operational risk, exercising oversight to confirm that
the risk strategy was appropriate. The Committee provided continued scrutiny over the Transformation Project (Merlin) as it
faced significant difficulties associated with the vendor and contract performance.

The Department of Treasury - Audit Committee Guidelines recommend audit committees conduct annual Self-Assessment

of the effectiveness and efficiency of performance against the Charter. The Committee undertook a self-assessment of the
performance and achievements for the 2023-2024 financial year to ensure objectives were met efficiently and effectively,
and to confirm that all responsibilities outlined in the Terms of Reference had been performed. This year’s Committee
assessment was again extended to seek 360° feedback from Council’s Elected Members, the Executive Leadership Team,
and Reporting Officers. Upon completion of the assessments the Committee confirmed its overall effectiveness, however, it
did identify a few minor recommendations for improvements which have subsequently been actioned, implemented, or noted
for future consideration.

Focus Areas for 2024-2025

» Monitoring the recruitment, appointment and performance of contracted Internal Auditors (2025-28);

»  Strategic guidance on development of the 2025-28 Strategic Internal Audit Plan;

»  Continued monitoring of machinery of government changes to ensure continuity of operational performance, and
effective mitigation of associated risks;

» Lessons Learnt — Major Digital Transformation Projects;

» Continued monitoring of the Audit Response Action Plan to ensure timely implementation of audit recommendations;

»  Continued monitoring of Council’s Financial Sustainability, with particular focus on strategic asset management
maturity and asset accounting practices;

» Continued monitoring of Cyber Security and the effectiveness of Council’s ICT security controls and systems;

» Ongoing assessment of the maturity of the Enterprise Risk Management Framework and Safety Management System;

»  Confinued monitoring of processes and controls associated with revenue recognition, in parficular grant management practices;

» Increased scrutiny of Council’s fraud and corruption management framework and monitoring of reportable activities; and

» Continued review and feedback of Council’s Shell General Purpose Financial Statements in accordance with
Council’s External Audit Plan/s.
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Councillor Remuneration, Expenses and
Attendance

Councillor Remuneration

In accordance with section 250 of the Local Government Regulation 2012, Council must prepare and adopt by resolution an
expenses reimbursement policy for the reimbursement of reasonable expenses incurred by Councillors when discharging their
duties and responsibilities as Councillors and the provision of facilities necessary to undertake their roles.

g Gross Superannuation Total Home Office MotorVehicle Expense Remuneration
Councillor . Allowance & Car . .
Salary $ $ Remuneration$ | Allowance $ ) s Reimbursements Period
Klm’s Claimed $
1 July 2023 -
CrAndrewlreland - ¢05 50 $12,772 $118,282 $923 $15,385 $6,847 29 March
(Mayor)
2024
Cr Adam Belot
1 July 2023 -
(Deputy Mayor/ $102,319 $12,422 $114,741 $1,200 $7115 $10,853
30 June 2024
Mayor)
Cr Andrea Friend $74,766 $9,116 $83,882 $1,200 $6,402 $4,069 1 Dy 0Pk =
30 June 2024
Cr Rhodes Watson $75,258 $9,175 $84,433 $1,200 $3,634 $3,415 1July 2023 -
30 June 2024
. . 1 July 2023 -
Cr Clint Swadling $56,535 $6,897 $63,432 $936 $27156 $sm8 4 April 2024
Cr Lance Warcon $18,436 $2,244 $20,680 $268 $1,362 $589 3 April 2024 -
30 June 2024
Cr Pat Eastwood 1 July 2023 -
(Councillor/ $78,262 $9,536 $87798 $1,200 $3,692 $7.437 Y
30 June 2024
Deputy Mayor
3 April 2024 -
Cr Wade Rothery $18,436 $2,244 $20,680 $268 $1,362 $528 30 June 2024
Cr Glenda Mather $74,912 $9,133 $84,045 $1,200 $12,536 §2380 | July2023-
30June 2024

TOTAL $604,434 $73,539 $677,973 $8,395 $78,644 $41,236 $806,248

Attendance at Council Meetings

Ordinary Meetings Special Meetings Ordinary Meetings Special Meetings Standing Committee

Councillor 30June 2023 - 16 30June 2023 - 16 17 March 2024 - 30 17 March 2024 - 30 4 June 2024 - 30 June
March 2024 (9 Held) March 2024 (9 Held) June 2024 ( 3 Held) June 2024 (2 Held) 2024 (3 held)

Mayor Andy Ireland 9 9 - - -

Mayor Adam Belot - - 3 2 3

Deputy Mayor Adam Belot 9 9 - - -

Cr Glenda Mather 9 9 3 2 3

Cr Pat Eastwood 9 9 8 2 8

Cr Andrea Friend 9 9 3 2 3

Cr Rhodes Watson 9 9 3 2 3

Cr Clint Swadling 9 9 - - -

Cr Lance Warcon - - 3 2 3

Cr Wade Rothery - - 8 2 8

LIVINGSTONE SHIRE COUNCIL 2023-2024 ANNUAL REPORT 8



Code of Conduct for Councillors

Council is committed to the ethical principles and obligations contained in the Local Government Act 2009

and Public Sector Ethics Act 1994.

Orders made under section 1501(2) of the Act — (dealing with unsuitable meeting conduct) 0
Orders made under section 1501A(2)(b) of the Act 0
Orders made under section 150AH(1) of the Act — (disciplinary action against a Councillor by local government) 0

Decisions, orders and recommendations made under section 150AR(1) of the Act — (decisions on misconduct by a Councillor determined
by the tribunal). Details: Cr Andrew Ireland - Failure to comply with Council’s Councillor Complaints Investigation Policy.

Complaints referred to the assessor under section 150P(2)(a) of the Act by local government entities for the local government — (com-

plaint referred to Independent Assessor by another government entity) 0
Matters, mentioned in section 150P(3) of the Act, nofified to the Crime and Corruption Commission 0
Notices given under section 150R(2) of the Act - (complaint referred to independent assessor by local government official about 8
inappropriate conduct or misconduct)

Notices given under section 1505(2)(a) of the Act — (inappropriate conduct 3 times in 1 year) 0
Occasions information was given under section 150AF(3)(a) of the Act 0
Occasions the local government asked another entity to investigate, under chapter 5A, part 3, division 5 of the Act for the local govern- 0
ment, the suspected inappropriate conduct of a councillor

Applications heard by the conduct tribunal under chapter 5A, part 3, division 6 of the Act about whether a councillor engaged in miscon- 0
duct or a conduct breach

Referral notices given to the local government under section 150AC(1) of the Act 0
Number of decisions made by the local government under section 150AG(1) of the Act during the financial year 0
The number of matters not decided by the end of the financial year under section 150AG(1) of the Act 0
The average time taken by the local government in making a decision under section 150AG(1) of the Act N/A

9 LIVINGSTONE SHIRE COUNCIL 2023-2024 ANNUAL REPORT



Statutory Information

Senior Management Remuneration Packages

Under section 201 of the Local Government Act 2009 Council is required to report the total number of remuneration
packages that are payable to the senior management and the number of employees in senior management positions who
are paid each band of remuneration (in increments of $100,000). For the 2023-2024 financial year, the total remuneration
packages paid to Council’s senior management amounted to $1,578,166.

Number of Senior Management Employees Band of Remuneration $ per annum

1 $100,000 - $200,000
4 $200,000 - $300,000
1 $300,000 - $400,000

CEO Remuneration

The Chief Executive Officer remuneration package payable for the 2023-2024 financial year was as follows:

Gross Salary (Payable) $254,412

Motor Vehicle Allowance $20,588

Superannuation $33,000
Professional Memberships $605

Administrative Action Complaints

In accordance with section 187 of the Local Government Regulation 2012, Council has adopted an Administrative Action
Complaints Policy and Procedure to effectively deal with complaints in a fair, confidential, prompt and respectful manner.

Council is committed to providing a high level of service in relation to complaint management by recognising the importance
of receiving community feedback on its services as a valuable tool to identify avenues for continuous improvement.

Council has a Complaint Management System in place, which is recognised as a key component of quality and governance
practices. Details about the process, including how to lodge a complaint can be found on Council’s website.

As required by section 187(2) of the Local Government Regulation 2012, the below table provides a summary of
Administrative Action Complaint outcomes for 2023-2024.

OUTCOME OF ADMINISTRATIVE ACTION COMPLAINTS 2023 - 2024

Number of Administrative Action Complaints made 365
Number of Administrative Action Complaints resolved under the complaints management process

) N ) 'y b 370
(including complaints received in previous year 2022/2023)

Number of Administrative Action Complaints not resolved under the complaints management process 1
Number of Administrative Action Complaints that were made and not resolved that were made in the previous 0

financial year (2022,/2023)
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To enhance service quality, administrative action complaints are classified into specific categories. This enables
Council to identify emerging trends and root causes of these complaints. It allows for any concerns to be addressed
and drives continuous improvement. Below is a breakdown of the percentage of complaints received by complaint
category.

Percentage of complaints

Complaint Category made to the local
government
TIME: Dissatisfaction over time taken for Council to provide a service 2%
QUALITY: Dissatisfaction over the quality of service provided by Council 0%
PERSON: Dissatisfaction over the actions of a Council Officer 0%
SAFETY: Dissatisfaction over an issue related to safety or risk 0%
COMMUNICATION: Dissatisfaction over the communication (or lack thereof) of Council 1%
EXPECTATION: Dissatisfaction over expectation of the service of Council 2%
INFRINGEMENT: Dissatisfaction over a penalty infringement notice received 95%

Human Rights Complaints

Public entities (including Local Governments) are required to act and make decisions compatible with human rights, as well
as take into consideration human rights when making a decision.

The Human Rights Act 2019 protects 23 Human Rights. Public entities, such as Council must uphold these rights when they
make decisions, create laws, set policies and provide services.

Council recognises that it has an important role in complying with Queensland’s Human Rights Act 2019 through its actions,
decisions, proposals and recommendations.

Under the Act, individuals who believe that a public entity has breached their human rights have the right to raise a complaint
and seek remedies. The Act provides various avenues for people to pursue complaints and secure appropriate remedies for
any infringements on their human rights.

In the 2023-2024 financial year, Council did not receive any human rights complaints.

For information in relation to Human Rights and the complaints process can found on Council's website or the Queensland
Human Rights Commission website.

Financial Assistance to Community Organisations

During the 2023-2024 financial year, Council supported a number of community organisations by granting financial
assistance.

Under section 189 of the Local Government Regulation 2012, Council must provide a summary of such contributions.

Community Grants Scheme
In 2023-2024, Livingstone Shire Council’s Community Grants Scheme provided local not-for-profit community and sporting
groups an opportunity to apply for funding up to $5,000, for initiatives which enhance Livingstone's liveability and build the

capacity and resilience of the applicant groups.

In 2023-2024, a total of $99,999.78 contributed by Council, was granted to 26 not for profit community and sporting
groups across Livingstone Shire.

1 LIVINGSTONE SHIRE COUNCIL 2023-2024 ANNUAL REPORT
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Round One - 2023-2024 Livingstone Community Grants (Successful Applicants)

Applicant Initiative Description

Yeppoon Rugby League Football Club Inc. Construct disability access ramp from gate into grounds $4,852.00
Marlborough and District Lions Club Inc. Purchase of generator and equipment for mobile refrigeration unit $4,550.00
Yeppoon and District Show Society Inc. Purchase of defibrillator and kitchen equipment $4,648.30

Upgrade poultry cages and purchase gazebos, leaf blower, and air

The Caves Progress and Agricultural Society inflator $886.70
Cap Coast Kart Club Inc. Fees for ecological report to enable development of track $5,000.00
Wildlife Rehabilitation HQ Inc. Wheelchair accessible pathway $2,606.00
Joskeleigh Community Association Inc. EZ?;ZL:?;ET;;LZOW]ngs B enetobetraiopmEseimliurzes $5,000.00
Jack's Paddock Inc. Purchase of arbour for cultivation and shade $1,438.80
Capricorn Coast Toy Library Inc. Purchase of laptop and software $1,176.00
Cawarral Cricket Club Inc. Purchase and application of topsoil on playing surface $4,770.00
Paddle Capricornia Fees for trainers for Sea Kayaking Symposium 2024 $5,000.00
Byfield and District Historical Society Inc. Purchase of defibrillators, training, and promotion $4,882.78
Lions Club of Emu Park Inc. Upgrade of signage at entrances to Emu Park $4,821.20

TOTAL $49,631.78

Round Two - 2023-2024 Livingstone Community Grants (Successful Applicants)

Applicant Initiative Description

Yeppoon Australian Football Club Inc. Final plans and engineering for female changeroom facilities $5,000.00
Yeppoon Senior Citizens Association Incorporated Purchase of equipment and resources for activities $1,612.71

Construct pathway between Capricorn Gardens Retirement Village

Cycling Without Age Yeppoon Inc. and the Rail Trail $5,000.00
Emu Park Golf Club Purchase of Public Address System $5,000.00
Capricorn Coast Rugby Union Football Club Replacement of existing goal posts $4,500.00
Sing for Health and Happiness Purchase of defibrillator and resources for activities $2,728.00
Yeppoon Tennis Club Inc. Supply and install solar hot water service $5,000.00
Marlborough State Emergency Services Purchase of Mobile fridge $1,708.00
Capricorn Coast Football Club Improvements to provide all abilities access to canteen and shed $5,000.00
Broadmeadows Clay Target Club Replace boundary fencing $4,950.00
Keppel Bay Sailing Club Purchase of Lifejackets $3,610.00
The Caves Recreational Hall Inc Replace external stairs $4,950.00
Yeppoon Litle Theatre Outdoor electronic billboard $1,309.29 (partial)

TOTAL $50,368.00
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Regional Arts Development Fund (RADF)

The Regional Arts Development Fund is a partnership between state and local governments which invests in quality arts and
cultural experiences across Queensland based on locally determined priorities.

The Regional Arts Development Fund 2023-2024 promotes the significance and value of arts, culture and heritage as the key
to:

» supporting diversity and inclusivity;
» growing stronger regions; and

» providing training, education and employment opportunities for Queensland artists and local communities.

The total budget available for the 2023-2024 Regional Arts Development Fund Program was $66,225 comprising of
$36,225 from the State Government — Arts Queensland and $30,000 from Livingstone Shire Council.

Round One - 2023-2024 RADF Grants (Successful Applicants)

Applicant/ Community
Group/Individual
Professional
Development

Purpose Amount $

Caitlyn Lever (Individual Professional Participation in the ‘Thriving Muralist’ course for professional development of mural

Development) artists. ZIERR
o oo i rd oy oy o/ o 3770
Yeppoon Litle Theatre Youth theatre production of ‘lvy Shambitt and the Sound Machine'. $4,250.00
High Valley Dawn Various arts and cultural components of the High Valley Dawn Festival 2024. $7,000.00
GKI Hideaway Country on Keppel Music Festival — workshops $5,918.00

TOTAL $23,701.00

Round Two - 2023-2024 RADF Grants (Successful Applicants)

Applicant/ Community
Group/ Individual
Professional
Development

Purpose Amount $

Lock and Hock The Unlock Project (youth theatre development) $8,230.00
Keppel Coast Arts The Creek Sessions (live music and arts events) $5,300.00
Warama Culture Pty Ltd Ngilan (moon) Festival $4,500.00
Sandy Krak Reef Festival Sandy Krak Reef Festival Workshops $5,000.00
Fig Tree Galleries Artist Workshops $2,550.00
Suzan Stewart Crafting by the Coast Retreat $4,200.00

Additional Local RADF Initiatives

$10,000 to Keppel Coast Arts Incorporated to manage the Fig Tree Gallery and Workshop Space on Council’s behalf.

$2,744 was utilised by Council to supplement the cost of bringing ‘Children are Stinky’ (an award-winning theatre show by
Circus Trick Tease for ages 3-12) to Livingstone Shire.
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Concessions, Special Rates and Charges

Rebates and Remissions are provided to approved Government Pensioners, Not-For-Profit/Charitable Organisations and

land holders with approved Nature Refuge Agreements under the Rates, Rebates and Remissions Policy. Further concessions
are provided to water consumers in accordance with the Concealed Leak Refund Procedure and Water Consumption Charge

Refund — Health Related Uses Procedure.

Tenders

Under section 228(4) or (7)(b) of the Local Government Regulation 2012, a local government may invite all tenderers to
change their tenders to take account of a change in the tender specifications. Within the 2023-2024 financial year ,there

were no changes to tenders under section 228(8) of the Local Government Regulation 2012.

Registers kept by Council

Section 190(1)(f) of the Local Government Regulation 2012, requires a local government to provide a list of registers
maintained by Council in its annual report, details of which are provided as follows:

Adopted Infrastructure Charges Register

Asbestos Register

Asset Register

Cat and Dog Register

Cemetery Register

Contracts Register

Corporate Delegation Register

Council Fees and Charges (Cost-Recovery Fees) Register

Enterprise Risk Management Register

Gift Register

Hazardous Substances Register

Investigation and Fraud Register

Local Law Register

Register of Administrative Action Complaints

Register of Complaints about the Conduct or Performance of Councillors
Register of Complaints about the Conduct or Performance of Employees
Register of Contact with Lobbyists

Register of Delegations (Council to CEO and CEO to Officers and/or Contractors)
Register of Development Applications

Register of Impounded Animals

Register of Installed On-site Sewerage and Grey Water Use Facilities
Register of Interests of Chief Executive Officer

Register of Interests of Councillors

Register of Interests of Senior Executive Employees

Register of Master Plan Applications

Register of Pre-Qualified Suppliers

Register of Resolutions about Land Liable to Flooding made under the Building Act
Register of Roads and Road Maps

Register of Subdivisions Approved under the repealed Local Government (Planning and Environment) Act 1990
Register of Testable Backflow Prevention Devices

Register of Thermostatic Mixing Valves

Related Party Register

LIVINGSTONE SHIRE COUNCIL 2023-2024 ANNUAL REPORT
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https://www.livingstone.qld.gov.au/downloads/file/575/rates-rebates-and-remissions-policy
https://www.livingstone.qld.gov.au/living-here/my-property/water-meters-and-billing/concealed-leak-refund
https://www.livingstone.qld.gov.au/downloads/file/2695/water-consumption-charge-refund-health-related-uses-procedure
https://www.livingstone.qld.gov.au/downloads/file/2695/water-consumption-charge-refund-health-related-uses-procedure

Legislative Requirements Not Applicable

The following list provides legislative requirements of a local government annual report in accordance with the Local
Government Act 2009 and the Local Government Regulation 2012 that do not apply to Livingstone Shire Council for the
2023-2024 financial year:

» Identifying beneficial enterprises (section 41 of the Local Government Act 2009);

» Other contents (section 190 of the Local Government Regulation 2012)
- {1){c) An annual operations report for each commercial business unit
- (1)(d) Details of any action taken for, and expenditure on, a service, facility or activity -
(i) Supplied by another local government under an agreement for conducting
a joint government activity;
(ii) For which the local government levied special rates or charges for the financial year; and

- (2) An annual operations report.

Legislative Requirements - Nil to Report

The following list provides legislative requirements of a local government annual report in accordance with the Local
Government Act 2009 and the Local Government Regulation 2012 which Livingstone Shire Council has no information to
report for the 2023-2024 financial year:

» Other contents (section 190 of the Local Government Regulation 2012)
- (1){i) A summary of investigation notices given in the financial year under section 49 for competitive
neutrality complaints;
- (1)(j) The local government's responses in the financial year on the QCA's recommendations

on any competitive neutrality complaints under section 52(3).

Workplace Health and Safety

The safety and wellbeing of our people, and all people we interact with, remains a key priority. We are continuing to build a
culture where we put safety first and want everyone to go home safe today and every day.

We have continued to implement our Safety Action Plan to improve our safety performance, with 100% of actions identified
for the 2023-2024 financial year completed. Our safety performance is driven through key performance indicators,
targeting key areas of improvement and developing proactive hazard and risk management strategies that will eliminate or
reduce risks to employees in the workplace. We continue to monitor these trends, focusing on lead and lag indicators.

The health, safety and wellbeing of our people both physically and mentally, continues to be a priority. As we closed out
the 2023-2024 financial year our Lost Time Injury Frequency Rate (LTIFR) sat at 27.81%. Whilst this is not where we would
like it to be, we are taking further steps to improve our safety and reduce our LTIFR to ensure all our people return home
safely. Council actively supports worker’s health and wellbeing through a range of health and wellbeing programs and by
supporting workers to return to work as soon as possible, for both work-related and non-work-related injuries.

Not only is physical safety important but the psychological health and wellbeing of our people is just as important to us.
Council continues to maintain a strong focus on mental health and wellbeing through trained and accredited Mental Health
First Aid Officers who are able to provide support for team members who may be experiencing a mental health crisis or
illness. Council’'s Employee Assistance Program also remains a key offering providing free counselling services to employees
and their immediate family members.

The safety and wellbeing of employees continue to be our focus. This means that we will continue to focus strongly on safety

and involve employees in the organisation as we aim for our goal that no person shall come to harm while working at
Council.
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Overseas Travel

No overseas travel was made during this financial year by Councillors or officers.
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Community Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2024

Interpreting formally presented financial statements prepared in accordance with relevant accounting standards can often be a
difficult process for all stakeholders, especially those with limited or no financial knowledge. The aim of the Community Financial
Report is to assist readers to evaluate Council’s financial performance and financial position without the need to interpret the
financial statements. In this way the financial operations of Council can be clearly understood by members of our community
and other interested stakeholders.

Councils are driven by community service obligations rather than profit. Itis Council’s responsibility to provide residents with
services such as roadworks, street lighting, stormwater drainage, water supply, sewerage and garbage collection and disposal.
Therefore, ratepayers need to be satisfied that funds are being used wisely for the benefit of the community, now and for the
benefit of future generations.

Council's General Purpose Financial Statements are a record of our financial performance for the year ended 30 June 2024
and are subject to an independent audit process to verify the accuracy of the reports, as well as the systems Council has in
place to record financial transactions. The three primary reports are the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Statement of
Financial Position, and the Statement of Cash Flows.

Statement of Comprehensive Income
The Statement of Comprehensive Income details total income and total expenses, and the net result attributable to Council as a
result of Councils activities for the financial year.

Sources of Income - Where our money comes from...

The majority of Council’s income comes from rates, levies & charges, fees & charges, interest, sales revenue, grants, subsidies

& contributions. To provide services to the community, Council must collect revenue. Rates and utility charges are Council’s
principal source of revenue. Council also charges fees to developers and receives funding in the form of grants and subsidies
from other levels of government and in some cases the private sector, to help construct and maintain our extensive infrastructure.

A total of approximately $145.3 million in revenue was recognised for the year. This was comprised of $116.0 million in
operating revenues and $29.3 million in capital revenue.

Unlike previous years, Council did not receive an advance payment of the Commonwealth Federal Assistance Grant and
therefore grant revenue has reduced. As the timing of the grant payment is determined each year by the Federal Government,
Council's operating results may be impacted by future changes to the timing or amount of the prepayment.

Capital revenue is derived from grants, contributions and the revaluation of Council’s non-current assets. Capital revenue

fluctuates each reporting year and is dependent largely on the monetary value attributed to assets contributed by developers
and government grants received as funding for capital works projects.

TOTAL INCOME

5 62.8%
20.19% Rates, Levies & Charges

Fees & Charges
1.20% Operating Grants, Subsidies & Contributions
4.07% Sales Revenue
5.15% Interest Received
179% Other Recurrent Income
4.73% Capital Grants, Subsidies &

Contributions
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Expenses - Where our money is spent...

The three largest items of Council’s expenditure are employee benefits, materials & services and depreciation, and overall
operating expenses for the year totalled approximately $112.0 million. The level of expenditure is constantly monitored via

a rigorous budget process. Detailed estimates are prepared prior to the start of the financial year and are then constantly
monitored throughout the year as part of a quarterly budget review process to ensure that funds are utilised efficiently. Council
requires a diversified workforce to provide the many and varied services to our community. Council also needs to plan and
monitor the future of the shire in respect to developments, so that our existing lifestyle is maintained and improved.

Council spends considerable funds on materials and services to operate effectively. In accordance with Council’s procurement
policy, some preference is given to local businesses when work needs to be tendered to external suppliers. As well as being a
large employer in the community, it makes sound economic sense to keep our money circulating in the region for the benefit of
all who live here.

Depreciation is a way of allocating the cost of an asset over the assets’ estimated useful life. Through the accurate calculation
and allocation of depreciation, Council is confident that it will have the necessary funds to renew existing assets.

In addition to operating expenditure, Capital expenses totalled approximately $3.9 million. This amount related predominantly
to assets written off for disposal as part of our investment in renewing existing assets.

TOTAL EXPENDITURE

2.85% 3-38%

I Employee Benefits
B Materials & Services
[ Depreciation & Amortisation
I Finance Costs

- Capital Expenses

28.89%

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year

Total comprehensive income for the year was approximately $40.1 million, which is the difference between total income and
total expenses and measures the change in Council’s net community assets. Total comprehensive income includes the increase in
Council’s asset revaluation surplus of $10.7 million resulting from the revaluation of Council’s non-current assets in accordance
with Australian Accounting Standards, and a $0.2 million change in Council’s landfill rehabilitation provision.
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Statement of Financial Position

The Statement of Financial Position lists Council’s assets and liabilities. The result of these two components determines the net
worth of Council.

What Do We Own?

Council controls a broad range of current and non-current assets of which approximately 88.0% is attributed to property,
plant & equipment assets. This is a significant investment for the community and requires astute management to ensure the

level of service provided by these assets is maintained over the long-term.

TOTAL ASSETS

Vo 8.67%

0.47% I Cosh & Cash Equivalents
Trade & Other Receivables
3.85%
Land

511%

Site Improvements

Buildings
.84%

18.53% 08 )
Plant & Equipment

Roads & Drainage Network
Bridge Network

Water Assets

Sewerage Assets

2.42%

Inventory

44.14% Other

Total assets are approximately $1.4 billion as at 30 June 2024.

Capital Works
Capital works undertaken for the year totalled approximately $27.7 million. These capital works were funded from different
sources including grants & subsidies, and cash holdings. Contributed assets of $15.7 million were also received from new

developments within the region. Significant projects undertaken in 2023-24 were:

»  Emu Park Reservoir

» Queen St Upgrade (Arthur St to Mary St)

» Capricorn Coast Memorial Gardens

»  Station Quarter Community Recovery Hub

» Gateway Industry and Business Park Stage 2A and 3B

» Normanby St (Mary St to Ben St) HOBAS Mains Replacement
» Annual Road Reseal Program

» Barmaryee Sports Complex Emergency Services Staging Area
» Yeppoon Sewerage Treatment Plant Membrane Augmentation
» Yeppoon Road Upgrade — TMR Water Relocations

» Local Disaster Co-ordination Centre ICT Renewal

»  Water Treatment Plant clarifier scraper replacement
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» Caves Waste Transfer Station Refurb & Upgrade
» Merv Anderson Park Amenities
» Cooee Bay Tennis Court Hardcourt Resurface
»  Progression on several major projects including:
- Cooee Bay Swimming Pool Upgrade
- Great Keppel Island Sewerage Treatment Plant & Arrivals Plaza
- Emu Park Sewerage Treatment Plant Upgrade
- Tanby Road South PFTI
- Yeppoon Landfill Cell extension
- Artillery/Greenlake Road Upgrade
- Gateway Industry and Business Park Stage 4

What Do We Owe?
Council's borrowings at the 30 June 2024 totalled approximately $48.5 million. The level of Council’s long-term debt is

regularly reviewed as a component of the long-term financial forecast.

Interest expense on all loans, totalled 2.2% of total operating income.

TOTAL LIABILITIES
4.23%

3.83% 15.21%

22.52%

I Payables
B Borrowings
- Provisions
I Contract Liabilities
P Other

54.21%

Total liabilities were approximately $89.5 million at 30 June 2024 of which approximately 54.2% are borrowings
with the Queensland Treasury Corporation, which are used to pay for Council’s capital works.

Financial Sustainability Ratios

An important indication in determining the financial health of Council is to calculate and review financial indicators or financial
ratios. These ratios further assist in understanding the financial performance and position of Council relative to predetermined
local government sector benchmarks, without reading through all of the details contained within the general purpose financial
statements.

From the 2024 financial year, there are now eight ratios. The calculation of each of the first six ratios is independently audited
each financial year, with the remaining two ratios used for contextual purposes only. Each ratio is listed below with a forecast of
how each ratio changes over the longer term as adopted in Council’s Long Term Financial Forecast.

With the exception of the Asset Sustainability Ratio and Asset Consumption Ratio, all of the ratios are within the target range over
the long term. While the Asset Sustainability Ratio only achieves the target of greater than 80% in only one year, the results are

a reflection that in accordance with Council’s asset management plans a majority of Council’s property, plant and equipment
assets are not forecast to require renewal during the 10-year forecast period. This is also reflected in the decline in the asset
consumption ratio over the same period.
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Relevant Measures of Financial Sustainability
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1 Unrestricted cash expense coverage ratio

Total cash and equivalents add

current invest ts add availabl

ongoing QTC working capital limit  ~ . 0 140
less externally restricted cash /
Total operating expenditure less
depreciation and amortisation less
finance costs x 12

Forecast is not required
months months

The unrestricted cash expense cover ratio is an indicator of the unconstrained liquidity available to a council to meet ongoing
and emergent financial demands, which is a key component to solvency. It represents the number of months a council can
continue operating based on current monthly expenses.

2 Operating Surplus Ratio

Operating result / Total operating  Greater than
revenue 0%

34% (01)% 0.0% 22% 2.0% 2.5% 32% 23% 16% 11% 0.8%

The operating surplus ratio is an indicator of the extent to which operating revenues generated cover operational expenses. Any
operating surplus would be available for capital funding or other purposes. Council's long-term financial forecast indicates that
Council anticipates achieving a balanced operational budget or modest surplus through all future forecast years.

3 Operating Cash Ratio

Operating result add

depreciation and amortisation Greater
add finance costs / Total than 0%
operating revenue

34.5% 310% 31.4% 33.8% 33.5% 33.3% 329% 322% 321% 319% 31.7%

The operating cash ratio is a measure of council's ability to cover its core operational expenses and generate a cash surplus
excluding depreciation, amortisation, and finance costs.

4 Asset Sustainability Ratio

Capital Expenditure on the

Replacement of Assets Greater
(renewals) / Depreciation than 80%
Expense (%)

31.0% 744% 942% 36.2% 36.5% 37.0% 49.0% 32.6% 273% 281% 261%

This ratio indicates whether Council is renewing or replacing its existing assets at the same time that its overall stock of assets

is wearing out, expressed as a percentage. Council has asset management plans to develop strong, long-term plans for the
management of its substantial asset base. Despite this ratio being less than the target of 90% across each of the forecast years,
this is a reflection that in accordance with Council’s asset management plans, a majority of Council’s property, plant and
equipment assets are not forecast to require renewal during the 10 year forecast period.
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5 Asset consumption ratio

Written down replacement cost of

depreciable infrastructure assets /  Greater than
Current replacement cost of depre- 60%

ciable infrastructure assets

681% 61.8% 62.4% 61.6% 61.1% 60.4% 60.1% 59.2% 583% 57.6% 56.7%

The asset consumption ratio approximates the extent to which council's infrastructure assets have been consumed compared to
what it would cost to build a new asset with the same benefit to the community.

6 Leverage ratio

Book value of debt /

Total operating revenue less
total operating expenditure add
depreciation and amortisation

0 - 3 times 1.20 1.10 090 070 050 030 0.20 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10

The leverage ratio is an indicator of a council's ability to repay its existing debt. It measures the relative size of the council's debt
to its operating performance.

7 Council controlled revenue ratio

Net rates, levies and charges add
fees and charges / No target 84.7% 852% 88.0% 889% 88.7% 88.5% 888% 889% 886% 881% 877%

Total operating revenue

Council controlled revenue is an indicator of a council's financial flexibility, ability to influence its operating income, and
capacity to respond to unexpected financial shocks.

8 Population growth

Prior year estimated population
/ Previous year estimated popu-  No target 22%  22% 22% 22% 22% 22% 22% 22% 2.2% 22% 22%

lation - 1

Population growth is a key driver of a council's operating income, service needs, and infrastructure requirements into the future.
Council has used the Compound Annual Growth Rate method for calculating this ratio. This method calculates the average
annual growth rate over a 10 year period based on the Queensland Government Statistician's Office population projections for
the Livingstone local government area for the period 2026 to 2036.
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Statement of Changes in Equity
This statement demonstrates the movements between the differing elements of equity, which is the net wealth of the

Community.

What Are We Worth?

Community equity is equal to total assets less total liabilities and at 30 June 2024 is approximately $1.3 billion. Over the
long-term Council’s adopted long term financial forecast outlines that Council is holding adequate reserves of cash, has
substantial equity in its assets and is substantially reducing total debt over the course of the next 10 years through to the

conclusion of the forecast period in the 2033-34 financial year.

The healthy financial position of Council combined with sound budgeting practices and forward planning, provides capacity

for Council to meet its objectives as well as provide a degree of flexibility if strategic directions change.

Statement of Cash Flows

The Statement of Cash Flows reports the cash flows in and out of Council for the financial year. This statement is useful in
assisting readers to assess Council’s sources and uses of cash whilst indicating that Council has the capacity to meet all of its
financial commitments as and when they fall due. Cash flows are classified into operating, investing and financing activities.

In regard to financing activities, Council did not need to borrow any funds to pay for capital works undertaken in 2023-24.

Council pools and invests ratepayer’s funds throughout the year in low-risk short to medium term investments in accordance
with Council’s investment policy. The net movement in cash for the 2023-24 financial year was an increase of approximately
$13.1 million mainly as a result of the increased operational surplus, investment income, and timing related issues in the

capital works program.

Looking to the Future

Council is well placed to provide the necessary financial resources to address the land use, natural resource, environmental,
economic and social challenges associated with the developing growth across the shire. Council’s financial strategies
continue to align to its community plan and corporate plan which were originally adopted during the 2019-20 financial year.
Both of these plans are important forward planning documents to enable the effective and efficient delivery of services to the

community.

Council remains committed to responsible financial management, ensuring that it abides by the four financial guiding

principles it has adopted to develop and inform future budgets and long-term financial forecasts:

1. The community’s finances will be managed responsibly to enhance the wellbeing of residents;

2. Council will maintain community wealth to ensure that the wealth enjoyed by today’s generation may also be enjoyed
by tomorrows generation;

3. Council’s financial position will be robust enough to recover from unanticipated events, absorb the volatility inherent in
revenues and expenses; and

4. Resources will be allocated to those activities that generate community benefit.

Council will continue to maintain its strong financial base through the prudent use of rates collected, grants and subsidies,
developer’s contributions, borrowings and the use of cash reserves. Ongoing cash flow planning, adhering to sound
budgeting principles, the implementation of Council’s long term asset management plans, quarterly budget reviews and long-

term financial planning will assist Council in achieving its strategic objectives.
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Livingstone Shire Council

General Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2024

Introduction

Each year, ndividual Local Governments  across
Cueensiand am requred o present 8 set of audited
Financal Staterments 1o thelr Council and Communiiy

What you will find In the Statements

The Financial Statements setoul the financial porformance,
financial position and cash flows of Coundil for the financial
year onded 30 June 2024,

The format of (he Financiat Stataments complies with both
Ihe accaunting and reporfing requirements of the Australian
_Acceunting Standarnds,

About the Management Certificate

The financial statements must be cerified by Dol the Mayor
and the Cheaf Executive Officer as prasanting a true and falr
view of Council's fnancial results for the year and are
required 1o be adopled by Councdl, ensurng  hoth
responsibiity for and ownership of the financial slatements.

About the Primary Financial Statemants

The Financial Staterments incorporate four “primary”™ financial
sialemanis:

1. A Statement of Comprehensive Income

A summary of Council's financial performance for the year,
listing @l Income and éxpenses The combined Othar
Comprehensive Income records items such as changes in
{hie failr vailes of Counciis property, plant and sguipment and
financial instruments

2. A Statoment of Financlal Position

A 30 June snapshot of Councif's Financial Position including
= assets and lighHities.

3. A Statement of Changes in Equity

Tha overall change for the year (in doflars) of Council's “net
warafth”,

4, The Statement of Cash Flows

Indicates where Counci's cash came from and where | was
spant.

About the Noles 1o the Financial Staternants

The Notes to ihe Finanoial Stalemants provide greater detal
and additsonal information on the lour Primary Financial
Staterments.

Aboul the Auditor's Reports
Counaifs Financial S1atemants are reguired o (he avdited
by the Queensland Audit Office

The Auditor provides an audit repor which gives an apinian
on whather the Financiel Statements present a true and falr
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view of the Council’s Tinancial performance, pesilion ang
eash Now for the year then ended,

Wha uses the Financial Statemants?
The financal staterments are’ publicly available documents

and must be presented at a Council masting aftar the 'date
of the Audit Report
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Livingstone Shire Council

Statement of Comprehensive Income

for the year ended 30 June 2024

Income

Recurment revenue

Rates, lavies and charges

Fees and charges

Salas revenue

Granis, subsidias and contribufions
Total recurrent revenue

Capital pevanus
Grants, subsidies and contnibutions
Total capital revenue

Other incoma
Imigrest received
Crher incotmne
Caphtal incame

Total other income
Tetal income

Expenses

Recurrant expensas
Empigyee benelils

Matarials and services
Finance costs

Depreclation and amortisation;

Depreciation of property. plant snd equipment

- Imangible assets
Total recurrent expenses

Other expenses

Capita! Expenses

Total other expenses
Total exponses

Mel Reaull

Other comprehansive income

Amounts which will not be reclassified subisequently o the operating

result

Nal Increase in assel revaluation surplus
Total other comprehensive income for the year

Tatal comprehensive income for the year

Financisl Stetemants 2024

2024
s ‘w00

81,384
6.881
7480
2,609

108,363
29152
29,132

5,509
1,738
211

7.858
146,353

35,716
39,535
3,302

33342
111

112,058
3,821
3.921
115,976
28.377

10,756
10,756

40,133

The above statoment should be nead in conjunclion with the scoompanyng nalas and matensl accoening polices.

LIVINGSTONE SHIRE COUNCIL 2023-2024 ANNUAL REPORT

2023
$ ‘000

81,875
7,128
3,830
8104

101,057

41,458
47,458

3,662
1772
1,976
7410

149,906

849.523
35,544
3,448

30,810
108
105,234

7,725

7.725
112.958
36.946

155,706
165,706

192,652
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Livingstone Shire Council

Statement of Financial Position

8581 30 June 2024

Assets

Current assels

Cash and cash equivalents
Financial assots
Receivabias

Irvantories

Contract assets

Other assots:

Total current assets

Mon-current assols
Inveritones

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Total non-current assets

Tolal Assets

Liahilities

Current lablities
Payables

Contract liablliias
Borrewings

‘Provisions

Other fiabilities

Total current liabilities

Hon-gurrent llabilities
‘Borrawings

Provisions

DOiher liabllites

Total non-current liabilities

Total Liabilities

Net community assels
Community equity

Asgal révaliation surplus
Retainad surplus

Total commurity eqguiy

2024
Bibod 5000

" 90,353
m 32,500
13 B.717
12 1.078
1ho 5284
e 3.620

138,550

W 2,784
i1 1,274,164
77

1,277,105
1,416,655

1 13,620
1 3432
i 5,255
] 7.arz
i 1,338

32817

1 42,281
] 12,188
™ 2452

56,821

89,538
1327417

Lt 271,505
1.055.612

1327197

T abov sbiriarment should Ba read ln conjuncion wilh the atcompanying notes and maleral nccounting policies.

Finangial Statements 2024

Rastated
2023 °
000

Bo. 744
5.040
5,208
1.207
2652

4484

118,205

4763
1,258,067
288

1,264,118
1383413

13,555
3725
5958
7.917
1,347

32,500

48,430
12,125
3.550
64,114

96,614
1,286,799
260,564

1,026,235
1.286,798

M Councl hes made g retrospective Eslatamen a2 8 conssgoeence of a cormeciion, of smor I sccordanor with AASE 108, Detalls are

disciosed In Noge 26

LIVINGSTONE SHIRE COUNCIL 2023-2024 ANNUAL REPORT
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Livingstone Shire Council

Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 30 June 2024

Balance as-al 1 July 2023

Mot resull

Other comprohensive incomae for the year
- Incraase in assel revaluation surplus

- Change in value of future rehabililation costs
Other compgrehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the year

Balance as at 30 June 2024

Balanca as al 1 July 2022
Adjustmants to opening balance

Net result

Other comprehensive Income for the year
- Increase in asset revaluabion surplus
=Changa in value of future rehabiltation costs
Other comprehonsive income

Total comprehensive income for the year

Balance as at 30 June 2023

Assol

rovaluation

surplus

b $ ‘000

280,564

M 10,756
h 185
10,941

10841
277.508

104,858

Fudl

4 157,228
] i1.522)
155,706

155,706
260,564

Financial Siatemants 2024

Retained
surplus
$'000

1.028.235

29,377

25,377
1.055612

892,899
3,610)

35,9496

36,046
1,026,235

The above slaterment should be road In confunction wilh e accampanying nales and malenal sccountng poicies.

LIVINGSTONE SHIRE COUNCIL 2023-2024 ANNUAL REPORT

Total
aduity
$ 000

1.286,7599

29,317

10,758
185
10,941

40,318
13zran

1.087 757
(36T

36,846

157,228
(1.622)
155,706
192,652

1,286,798
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Livingstone Shire Council

‘Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 30 June 2024

Heomne

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from cusiomers
Paymenis o suppllers and employies

Receipts

Waste levy recenad i advance

Interest rocalved

Nor-capital grants and contnbubions

Other

Payments

Bosrawing cosls

Met cash inflow [outfiow) from operaling activilies 20

Cash Tlows from Investing activities

Racaoipis

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Grants, subsidies, contributions and donations

P

Paymants for financial assets _

Payments for property, plant and equipment

Payrmants for intangible assels

Met cash inflow (outflow) tfrom investing achvilies

Cash flows from financing activities

Fayments

Repayment of borrowings

Net cash flow Inflow (outflow) from financing activities

MNelincrease (decreasa) in cash and cash equlvalent held

Cash and cash equivaients at the beginning of he financial year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year il

plus: Investmants on hand - and of year
“Tolal cash, cash equivalents and financial assels

Fmiancial Stalormels 2024

2024
$'000

105,963
(78,681}
26 282

55
5,909
‘2643
7,356

(2:842)

39,403

B31
10,445

{27,500)
(26,711)

(42,835)

i5,850)
(5.859)

(9,391)

o5, 744
90,353

32,500

122 B53

Thin abivn shatermnt should b fead in confunciion with ihe accompanying netes and matedal acoountifg poicies

LIVINGSTONE SHIRE COUNCIL 2023-2024 ANNUAL REPORT

2023

83389
(76 897)
16,472

1,196
3,662
6,911
6208

(3,154
31,295

2,490
18,296

{40,175)
{250

(19,639

15.563)
(5,563)

8,083

88,651
104,744

5,000
109,744

Page T of 54
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Livingstone Shire Council

Motes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2024

Fmancial Statemends 2024

Note 1. Information about these financial statements

{a) Basis of preparation

Livingstone Shire Council (Council) is consiiluted under the
Queansland Local Govemmaent Acd 2009 and | domicited i
Ausiralis,

These general purpose finandial siatements are for the
partod 1 July 20231030 June 2024. They are prepared i
accordance with (ke Local Government Act 2009 and the
Loz Government Regulation 2012

Councll is 2 nol-for-prafil enlily for financal reporting
purposes -and Ihese financial statements comply with the
Australizn Accounting Standards and Interpretalions as
appficable to not-for-profit antities.

Thase financial sialemenls have boen prapared vnder lha
historizal cost convention except for the revaluation of certain
ciasses of property, plan! and equipment.

(b) Date of authorisation

The financial stalements were aulhorised for issue on the
aate they ware submitted \o the Auddor-General for final
signatume. This is the date the management cerificate is
signed.

() New and ravised Accounting
Standards adopted during the year

Counsil adopled a1 standards which became mandataorily
effactive for annual reporting perods beginning on 1 July
2023, Mone of the standards had a material mpact on
reported position, performance and cash flows

(d) Standards issued by the AASE not yel
effective

The Austrafian Accounting Standards Board (AASB) has
ssued Australian Accounting Standards and Inlerpretatons
which are not effective at 30 June 2024, These slandards
nave not been adopted by Council and will be Included in
fha financial statements on their effective date, Nane of the
signdards are expected to have a materal impact on
Councd's financial stalements.

(8) Estimates and Judgements

Council has made-a rumber of judgemants, estimates and
BssumMptions in preparing these financial statements. Thase
are basaed an the best information avaflable al the lima,
however dise 1o the passage of lime, thesa assumplions may
change and theréfore the racordad balances may not reflect
the final culcomes. The significant judgements, estimates
and assumplions relate to the following items and apecific
Information I8 provided in the relevant note:

+  Revenue recognifion - Nole 3

«  Valuation and depreciation of Properly, Pani and
Equipment - Nola 14

+  Provisions - Note 18

+  Contingent Lisbilities - Nole 22
«  Financal nstruments - Note 28

{fy Rounding and Comparatives

The financtal statements are in Australian dollars and have
been rognded o the nearest 1,000 or, whera that amound
15 5500 or less, to zene, Comparative information is generally
restated for reclassificalions, errors and  changes In
accounting policies. Unless pormilted otherwise by transition
rules in & new accaunting standard, comparalive information
Is prepared on the same basis as prior year,

{g) Volunteer Services

Yaoluntary services have bean engaged by council durng fhe
meporting perod bul are of an immatanal valus. Council
management have indicated hat voluntary senvices would
not be purchased if they had nol been donated,

{(h) Taxation

Council is exempl from income e however, |5 subject fo
Fringe Benefilz Tax, Goods and Services Tax (GST) and
Payroll Tax on cerain activilies. The net amount.of GST
recoverable from the Austrakian Taxation Office is disclosed
as a curran] azsel. The Statechant of Cash Flews has been
prossed up lor GET where applicabls.

{iy Adjustments for Assets Not Previously
Recognised and Duplicate Assels

During the year il has been jdenfified thal assels with 2
wrillen down valee of $4,804.960 shoud have been
disposed of priar to 1 July 2022 and counci also identifiad
some infrastructure assets such -as footpaths, stormwater
and sewer componants, and road median strips which had
not previously been recognised with 2 fota! value. of
51,195 448,

Dus fo thair materdal nafure, adjustments in the 2023-24
financial year relating to assets nol previously recognised
and dupliicate assets hawve been disclosed in Note 26
Reslaled Balancas.

Prigie & of 54
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Livingstone Shire Council Financiai Statements 2024

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2024

Note 2. Analysis of results by function

{a) Components of Council funclions
Detalls relating to council's functions as reported In Note 2(b} are as follows:

Councll has getermined the fuictions and activities based on service delivery. The streams of the organisationsl structisre
are) Office of the Chief Executive Officer, Infrastructure Services and Communiies Portfollos. The significant activitles of
Wasto Services, Water & Sewerage Senvicés and Central Funds ard reported separatély as managemant considers that such
disclosures are meaningful o users of Council's financial reports.

Ofice of the Chiel Executive Officer

Thie Office of the Chief Executive Officer provides for the execulive managemant of Livingslone Shire Councl and Includes
Ihe offices of the Mayvor, Councillors, Chiel Executive Offioer, Infernal Audit and the enabiing business units of Finance &
Governance, nformation Services and People & Culiure, The fhree enabling units provide the organisation with a high level
of support for their operations to facilitale the provisien of accurate, Umely and appropriate information lo suppar sound
decision making.

Infrastruclure Services _

This goal of Infrastructure Sendces is o ehsure thad the community is sendoed by high quality and effective road, drainage
and bridge nelworks. This includes councl's road conslruchion and maintenance activities, engineering, planning and design
aclivities Thig function also has responsibilily for council's depot operations and recoverable works.

Communilies

The goal af Communities s 10 ensure that Livingstone Shire is a heafthy, vibrant, contermporary and connecled communily
by providing well managed and maintalned community facilities; managing council's parks. open spaces and facllites, and
ensuring delivery of cullural, hoahh, welfare, envirenmental and recreational servicos. The portfulio is also responsibla for
the facilitation of the shire's growth and prosperily through well planned and quality development, and o ensure thal
Livingstone Shire is well designed, efficient and faciltales growth while preserving the character and riatural envisonment of
the shire. Responsibilities periain to coundll’s town planning activites including development assessment, development
compliance and sirategic planning, local laws_ librasies, community parinerships, natural resource management activities
and disaster management. Additional respensibifiies Include stralegic grewth and economic development Inltiatives,
socio-economic development programs and activities, towrism destination development, innovative placemaking and urban
design (nitiatives.

Waste Services
The goal of this function is te suppert our community and nalural envirconment by sustainably managing refuse, This includes
wasle collecton and disposal, recyeling collection and managemant of council's landfll facities.

Water and Sowerage Services

The goal of this function is to support a heallhy and safe community through managing sustalnable wator and seworage
services. Council's waler and sewerage business activity s responsible for the provision of waler and sewerage services to
[he residents of Livingstone Shire cluding eparatkan of water restment planis, reservoirs, water distribution network walar
guaiity control, sewerage trealment planis, trunk sewars, sewerage pump siations and sewerage makns & services.

Ceamiral funds
This metivity provides for a range of cenlral uppoe functions, This includes recegnition and allocation of general rales and
geant revenue, interest revense, and expenses not allocated 1o coundll's othaer funclions istod above.

Page 9 of 54
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Livingstone Shire Council

MNotes to the Financial Statements
for ihe year ended 30 June 2024

Note 3. Revenue

2024
4360

(a) Rates, levies and charges

Financial Siatements 224

2023

Rates and annual charges are recognisad as ravenue ai the beginmng af ihe rating perod 1o which they retate. Prepad

rates are recognized as a financial fabdity untit the beginning of tha rating period

Ganeral rates 47,484
Saparate rates 6.522
Sewsrage charges 14,103
Special rates 3rs
Warste utiiity charges B.ESE
Water access charges 12,585
Water consumption charges 9.564
Total rates and utility charge revenusa 99,704
Less; discounts {7.377)
Less penstoner and other remissions (243)
Total rates, levies and charges 61,384

{b) Fees and chargas

Revenue anising from lees and charges s recognised at the point in time when or as the performance obligation is completed

and the customer recaives the benefit of the gocds/services being provided.

The performance obligation relates o the specific services which are provided 1o the costemer, Generafy payment terms ane

42,385
7,831
12367
388
7,845
10,882
7434
9,346
16469}
(202)
81475

witrin 30 days of the provision of the service or in the case of council's caravan park operations the customer pays on armval

There ia no material obilgation for eouncil in refation (o refunds.

Revenue from infingements Is recognmsed upon issue of the infrmgement notice afer applying the expected credil oss mode

retating o the impalment of recelvables for inifial recognition.of stalulosry receivables

2024

5000

Bulkding, plumbing and development fees 2459
Infringements 118
Irrigation and commeadcial waler {ees 851
Locs laws and neafth lconaing fees Tae
Venues, svanls, toursm, and cullursl fees 265
Wosle fees 1,734
Other feos and charges B7T
Total fees and charges B.AE1

LIVINGSTONE SHIRE COUNCIL 2023-2024 ANNUAL REPORT

2023
§ ‘000

3,086
115
770
780
193

1.604
450

7,128

Page 170l 54
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a's " 5 Fi Sistemants 2024
Livingstorie Shire Council g b

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2024

Note 3. Revenue (continued)

() Sales revanue

Thee amaunt tecognised as revenue from contraci works durmg the financial year is the amount recalved or recaivable in
respect of the contracl work services rendered  The confract work camed out is nol sublect to retentions.

Proceeds of the sake of land neld as mventory are recognised once the sale coniracl has setfled. The cost of the land sold 15
disciosed |n hote 7 Matorials and servioes and Ihe value of ihe remaining sfock In hand in Maote 12 Inventories. For 2024, the
not profit on sale was §752 862 (2023: nil a8 no sales occurrad) '

2024 2023

$'000 _$000
Rendering of sorvices
Conlract and recoverabla works 2183 3,830
Tatal sale of services 2,183 3.850
Sale of goods
Sale of land hald as Inveniory 5256 -
Total sale of goods 5.296
Total sales revenus TAED 3.830

(d) Grants, subsidies, contributions and donations
Grant income under AASE 15

Where grantincome arises from an agreement which is enfarceabie and containg sufficiently spocific parformance obligations
then the revenue is recognised when control of each parformance obligation is satisfied

The performance obligations vary in ach agreement bul nalude providing communily devalopment aclivities, angagamant af
trainees, end commumity events, Paymant terms vary depending on the tarms of the grant, cash is received upfron! for some
gramts and on the achievemant of cadain payrment milestones for athers,

Egch-performance obfigation 15 considerad to ensure [hal the ravenue recognition refleats Ihe transfer of control and within
grant agreements thare may be some parformance obligations whéra control iransfers at a point in time and oihers which have
continuous transfer of conlrol over the life of the conract.

Grant income under AASE 1058

Where Counchl recelves an asset forsignificantly batow fair valus, the assel |s recognised st fair value, related labilily (o
eauity items) are recorded and income then is recognised for any remaining asset value at the Bme Ihal the assel is received

Capltal granis
Capiial grants received o enable Council to acquire of constredt an Mem of property, plant and equipment fo jdentified
specifications which will be under Couneii's coniral and which is erforceable are recognised as revenue as and whan the

ohligation o consinuct or purchase is compleled. For construction projects, this is ganerally recogrized in accordance with
the percantage of the project's compietion.

Dongations and contributians

Where assets are donated ar purchased for signiicanily bekow falr value, the revenus s recognised when theasse! |s acqulred
and contralled by the council )

Donations and contnbutions are genarally recognised on recaipt.of the asset since theie are no enforceable performance
ohbligatlons

Physical assets coniributied 10 councll by developers inthe fom of road works, stormwater, water and wastewater infrastructure
and park equipmant are recognised as revenuo when Council obtaina contral of fhe asset end there is sufficient data in the

Page 12 of 5
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Livingstone Shire Counci

| Financial Staternents 2024

Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year endad 30 June 2024

Note 3. Revenue (continued)

form of drawings and plans o detarming the approximate specifications and values of such sssela. Non-cash contritutions
with a value in excess of the recognition threshalds are recognised as non-current assets, and those below the thresholds
{outfined |n Note 14,5 ) are recorded as expanses.

2024 2023
§ 000 §'000

{1} Oparating
Contributions 62 29
General purpose grants 205 5.55-5
Govemment subsidies and grants 2342 2,518
Total operating granis, subsidies, contributions and donations 2508 8,104

1t Jume 2023, Coundil jecesved an amaunt of 54,482 068 cqualing to 100% of the 2023-24 Communwealth Financlal Asststance Grail
allecsbon. As these grants aig cxrsldered unlied grants, they ward recognised upon receiptin e 202223 financial pear, In the 2023-24
fmmncial yonr, Courcl did nod srcabve any such sidvance grand lunding and &8 such. there Is 8 decresse in Coumoil's roymmmee,

{ify Capital
Assots contributed Al fair valus 15.673 13443
Govemnment subgidies and grants . 10.556 23,525
Infrastructire contributions 2,503 4.520
Total capital grants, subsidies, contributions and donafions 29,132 41,458
(il Timing of revenue recognition for grants, subsidies, contributions and donations
2034 anzy
Revenue Revenue
recognised Revenue recognised Revenua
&t a point in recognised at a paint in recognised
time ovar time tima over time
‘000 § 000 $'000 $ 000
Gerants, subsadies, contnbutions and donations 21,215 10,528 26.037 _2_;‘.'9._.'}_25
21,218 10,526 26,037 23,525
Note 4. Inferest and olher income
2024 2023
$ 000 $'000
(&) Interest received
Interest recanved from invasimeants 5,782 3.543
Imenest recaived from overdue rates and wility charges 127 Rk
Total interest recaived 5909 3662
Foge 13 of 54
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Livingstone Shire Council

MNotes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2024

Note 4, Interest and other income (continued)

{b) Other income

Car wash Income

Commission and coliection fees
Insurance recoveres.

Rantal / lease income

Other operating incoma

Total other Income

Note 5. Capital income

{a) Gain / loss on disposal of non-current assets
Proceeds from the disposal of property, plani and squipmant
Less, book value of property, plant and equipment disposed
Gain on disposal of non-current assets

{b) Pravisiaon for restoration of quarries

Changa In provision dua 1o movemnen! In discount rate and estimate of future

cost

(c) Other capital incoma
Gain frern assels nol previously. recognised

Tedal capital Income

Nole 6, Employee benefits

Total staff wages and salaries
Termmation Benefits:

Annual leave, sick lsave, long service leave, and oiher entittements-

Superannuation
Counciliors” remuneration

Oiher employes related expenses

Less: caplialised emploves expanses
Total Emploves benefits

il

[ isbi

LIVINGSTONE SHIRE COUNCIL 2023-2024 ANNUAL REPORT

Financial Slatemants 2004

2024
$ ‘000

344

5T

1.738

2024

$'000°

B3
(653)
178

211

2024
5000

33,064

749
3813
806
38,432
748
39180

{3.465)

357156

Counclior remunaralion apresents safary, and other allowances paid i respect of cammying oul thar auties.

2023

a0

203
581
618
1.772

2023
0o

2,330
{2.217)

1.506
1.806

1.978

2023
$°000

32,778

1,281
3,727
i
37,061
1,078
39,035

{3.516)
35,523

Page 14 af 54



Livingstone Shire Council

Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 June 2024

Note 6 Employee benefits (continued)

Additional information:

Tatal Council employees &t the reponting date
Electid mambers

Adminlstratson siafl

Depol and ouldoors staft

Total bl e equivalent employess

Mole 7. Materials and services

Adminisiration supplies and consumables
Advertising. marketing and promodion

Audit of annual financial statements

Bulk water purchases

Communications and inforrmation lechnology
Consultants

Contractors

Donatons and sutiscriplions paid

Eleciricity

Insurance

Repairs @nd manlerancs

Security

Waste levy payment

Weste lavy refund

Cost of goods sold - Land held as invantory —
Otner materimis and servces

Total materials and services

Financial Statements 2024

2024
Number

25
1243
367

2024
$ 000

414
203

241
4,537
3,057
3T
6,814
1,080
1835
1,586
8,643
63z
1,851
{1.118)
4,584
1,647
39,535

2023
Mumber

124
361

2023
$ ‘000

418
214
20
4,290
3
2,763
7.814
g4
2270
1.840
8874
564
1,654
1:121)
1408
35,544

* Total audit fees quoted by he Queenaland Audit Office relating to the 2023-24 financial statements are $200,000 (2023

$190.300].

" The Gueensiand State Govemment rebaled $1,115,720 (2023: 5§1,120,554) of the state waste 1evy o miligate the dinect

Imipacts on househods.

*** Thi Cosl of goods s0ld - Land held as inventory, represents the cost of the land sold during the yest. The procesds of sales
4 recagnised as sales revenus once the contract has teltied. The value of the stock on hand is disclosed in Note 12 fnventorios

Mote 8. Finance costs

Bank charges
Urnenaing of decount o0 provisons

Fimance cosls charged by the Queensland Treasury Comoraticn

Impairmant of recekvibles
Total finance costs

2024

182

2,563
ar

3302

2023
§ 000

173
2,859

122
3,449
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Livingstone Shire Council Financia! Slatements 2024

Notes to the Financial Statements
for thie year anded 30 June 2024

Mote 9. Capital expenses

2024 2023
Potase 5000 5000
{a) Provislon for restoration of land
Change from revision of future resforalion expense L - i
= 7
{b) Other capital expenses
Loss on write-off of assals 3,921 T.646
Ciher - ¥
hseels previously recognised incomaclly ik - 65
3821 7.718
Total capital expenses 3o 7,725
Note 10. Cash and cash eguivalents and financial assets
2024 2023
o Walus 4000 § 000
Cash and cash equivalants
Cash in operating bank account 83,328 D4, 557
Cash on hand i i
Depaosits at call with the Queansland Treasury Corporation 7024 5,148
Total cash and cash equivalents 90,253 98,744
Balance per Staterment of Cashilows 80,353 99,744
Financial assats - current
Term deposits 32,500 5,000
Total current financial assets A2.500 5,000
Restricted cash
Cash and cash eguivalenis 90,353 99,744
Pius: eurrent financia! assets - term deposils 32,500 5,000
Less: exernally imposed resinctions on cash g (32,952) (33,122)
Unrestricted cash £9.901 T1.622

Trust funds
In sccordance with the Local Govermment Act 2009 and the Local Government Reguiaion 2012, a separats irus! bank account
and separate irust accounting records amm maintained for funds held in rust on behall of Inind paties, Funds held in councils

trust account inclide deposits lodged to guarantee pedormance and undaimed monies,
Council performs only 8 custodian role m respact of these monies and Dacause these mones cannot be wused for council

purposes, they are not considered revenus nor brought to account in the financial staterfents since council has no controd
over the assets. Council held $1,461,426 in rust funde &5 at 30 June 2024 (2023; §1,361,513).

Page 16 of &4
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Livingstone Shire Council Financial Stalements 2024

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2024

MNote 10, Cash and cash equivalents and financial assets (continued)

2024 2023
§ ‘000 $'000

Council's cash and cash equivalénts are subject to a number of external mstrichions (hat limit amoonts available for
discrationary of futura use Thase includa:

(1} Externally imposed expenditure restrictions at tho reporting date ralate to the
following cash assets:

Unspent govemnmant grants and subsidies 3,432 3,725
Unspent devvetoper contributions 2535 24,732
Waste levy refund recewved inadvance 3,805 4 665
Total externally imposed restrictions on cash assels 32,9562 33,122

Mote 11. Recelvables

Receivables are measured at amordsed cost which approxirmates fair value sl reporing date. Receivables are dus for
settlernenl within 30 days after the invoice is issued.

Under the Local Govemment Ack 2009 Councll has the power to sell an owners' property (o recover oulstanding rates debts,
Councll impairs rales receivabiles when outstanding debls exceed unimproved capital values of when a state lease has been
gannallad and It Is likaly that the outstanding rates cannot be received from the debior,

Inferest is charged on oulstanding rates at a rate of 7% per annum compounided monthly (2023: 7%). Mo interest is chargad
on other deblors. There is no concentration of cradit risk for rates and charges of other deblors receivabibe.

2024 2023
5000 5000
Current
Rates and charges 3,568 3237
CHhor deblors 3,390 3342
Total BE58 6457
less: Loss allowanca
Rates and charges 1212} (266)
(hther dabtors {29} _i_.’:;r'
Total loss allowance - receivablas {241) 1371}
Total eurrent receivables 6,717 6,208
Council's mparmant of recenvables s not matenal,
Page 17 of 54
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Livingstone Shire Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
foir fhe year ended 30 June 2024

Note 12. Inventories

Financial Stalamants 2024

Land acquired by council with the infention of reselling il (with oc withoul furthar devilopment) is classified as invenlory. As
an inventony ilem, this tand is recognised 35 a current asset once subdivision (s complete, survey plans are ragistered ard
identified pareals of land are being advertised for sala. Council i& currently developing and marketing The Gatewsy Business
& [ndustry Park, Invendories held for distribution are valused at cost and adjusted when spgdicable for any loss of sarvice

potential,
2024
o $'000
Current Inventories
(a) Invenlories held for distribution
Quarry and road materials E29
Stores and matenals 7
Total current inventories 1.076
Non-current inventaries
Land held a3 mventary 2,784
Total non-current invenfories 2,764
Duiring the year ended 30 Jiene 2024, no inlerest was capitafiaed 1o land purchasad for sale
Naote 13. Other assels
S
000
Currani
GST recoverabie B2T
Brepayments 981
Water charges notl yet levied EAUES
Total current other assats 3620

LIVINGSTONE SHIRE COUNCIL 2023-2024 ANNUAL REPORT
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Livingstone Shire Council Financial Staitatents 2024

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2024

Mote 14. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Recognition and measurement

{a) Recognition

ltems of plant and equipmen! with. a total value of less than $5.000 and Infrastriciure, buldings and site improvernent assels
with a total value of Tess than $10,000 are treated as an expense @ the year of acquisition. All other items of property, plant
and equipment are capitalised and included in the relevant assel class.

A eomplex assel |5 a physical assat capable of dizaggregation into significaénl companenis, such as road infrastructure, whisre
the components may include initial sartbwarks, formation, pavement, seal, kerb and channel, read furniture and footpaths.

Lard under roads and reserve land which Talls under the Land Acl 1934 or the Land Tike Act 7994 s conirolled by 1he
Cussnslant Govemmant pursuant 1o the relevant legislation, As such this land is nal recognised in these financial statements,

(b} Capital and operating expenditure

Direct labour and materials and an appropriate proportion of overheads incurmed in the acquisiiien or construction of assets are
traated as capilal expenditure. Rouling cparaling maintenance, repair costs and mingr renawals to maintain the operational
capacity end usaful [fe of the non-current assel s expensed as ncurred, while expendiiure thel ralates to replacement of a
miafor component of & assel o maintain its service polential is capitalisad

Expanditure imcurmed in accorgance with Nawral Disaster Reliel and Recovery Arrangements on road assels s andlysed
o delerming whethes the expandiiung 18 capital or operational in nature. The analysis of the expendilure requines councll
enginears fo raview the nature and axtent of expandiure on a gvan assel. For oxample, expendilure thal patches a roed is
generally mainienance in nalure, whseas 4 ket Lo ke rebulld Is lested as capital. Materlal expendiiure hal extends the
uaedul [ife or renews the service potential of the assel is capitalised

fe} Acguisition

Acquisitions of property, plant and equipment are milally recorded al cost plus costs mncidental to the acquistion, moluding
freight In, archilect's fees, engineeding desigh fees and all olher establishment costs. Subsequently, each class of property,
plant end equipment is stated al ool or fair value less, whare applicable; any accumulated. depreciation and accumulated
impairment loss. Donated items of peoperty, plant and equipment, except reserve land, are recoanised as assels and revenue
at fair valus.

{d). Depreciation

Land 15 nol depreciated as it has an anlimited bseful |fe. Depreciation on other property, plant and equipment assels Is
calculated on a straighl-dine basis 5023 to wrile-off the nat cost of revalued amount of each deprociabla assel. less its estimated
residual value, progressively over s estimated useful [fe to council, Management believe the straight-line basis appropriatety
reflects the pattern of consumptlion of all council assats.

Within the site improvements asset class, council has recognised a landfill rehabilitation assel. This assel is amortised
progressively based on the annual consumplion and estimated remaimng useful life of the current landfil cef. & number of
assumplions including projected waste taken gt the landfill, estimaled closure dates of the current celf and the estimated cos|
and timing of futire capping cullays have been used in measuring this assel

Where assels Have separately identiflatie components that sre subject to regular replacement, these components are ssigned
ugeful ves distingt from thie assel o whick Ihey refate. Any expenditure thal increases the originglly assessed. capacily of
service potential of an assel is capifalised and the new depreciable amount is depreciated over the remaining usehil life of
the-assatl to councl

fe}  Accumulated deprociation

in detarmining the level of physical ohsolescenca of road & drainage network, bridge network, waler & sewerage aclive
infrastructure, buildings and skte improvement assels, all were disaggregated inbe significant components which axhibited
ditferent useful lives, The accumulated depreciation cost was determined by an assessment of the age from erber the
ggsets construction dale or by a condilion assessment where an-asset was close to the and of its useful iife or whene no
rediable construction data information was available The age in days was then muitiplied by its daily depreciation amouni o
determine ihe accumulated dapreciation amounl,

Page: 21.0f 54

LIVINGSTONE SHIRE COUNCIL 2023-2024 ANNUAL REPORT

46



47

; 3 Frna ) Stalemants 2024
Livingstone Shire Council e !

MNotes to the Financial Statemenis
for the year ended 30 June 2024

Note 14, Property, plant and equipment (continued)

i Valuation

MNon-current: physical assets measured at fair value are revatued as necessary so ihat the carmping amount of each class
of astel does nol matarially differ from te fair value al the reporting date.  Plan) &nd egquipmant and work in progress am
measumad al cosl. Indapendant. prafessionaily qualified vatuers are engaged to determing the fair valus for each class of
propedty, plan! and equipment sssets measured o) fakr value al least once every five years. This process involves the vaher
physicaily sighting a represemative samole of councl assels across all assel classes and making their own assessments of
the condition of e assets al the dale of inspechion.

In the idervening years, council uses internal staff resources fo assess (he condltion and cost assumptions associated with
property, plant and equipment assets, These resulis are considared in combination with the Australian Bureau of Statisfics
Indices for Oueensland and other measures deamed suitable, which may include professional advice from appropriajely
gualfied external valuers. Together this information s used to form the basis of 8 management valuation for property, plani
and equipmient asset classes in aach of the inlarvéning years or pariods to 30 June 2024, Further details in refation 1o values,
Ihe methods of valuation and the key assumptions and in valuing each different asset clnss are disclosed below

On revaluation, sccumulated depreciation is restated proponionately with the changs in the carrying smouwnt of the assel and
any change in the estimate of remaining useful lifa. Separately identified componénts of assets are measurad on the sama
pwais a5 the assets to which they relate

In sccardance with AASE 13 fair value measurements are categensed on the foliowing basis:

Level 1: Qucled prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assals of lablities.

Leval 2 [nputs othar than quoted pricas included within level 1 thal are cbeervable for the asset or liability sither directly o
Imdiractiy.

Lewvel 3 Inputs for the asset of labiity that-are nol based on observable markel data (unobservable inpuls).

Thare ware no translers between levels of the hierarchy dunng the year,

The foflowing table presents all assals and labilifies that have been measured and recognised al tar values.

Page 22 of 54
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T 2 ; Fr 1 St 2024
Livingstone Shire Council s "

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2024

Note 15. Contract balances

2024 2023
§ 000 %000
{a) Contract assets
Contract assets 5.284 2,852
Contract assets 5,284 2652
(b} Contract liabillties
Funds received upfront lo construct Councll controjied assels 3432 3,725
Contract liabllities 3,432 3725

Fevenue recognised thol was incloded in the contract llability balance at the beginning of the year

Funds 1o consirecl Council a_uﬂhfalted aasals 3,140 11,545
Total revenue recognised 3140 11,545
Satisfaction of cantract liabilities

Councll has contract lizbiliies in relation to a number of construclian projects as al the reperting date. These ceniract llabilities
have arsen 85 a resull of council recelving advanced capllal grants payments to fund the construction of road & drainage
and site improvement assets and facilities. The contract liabilty will be released and recognised as revenue based on the
percentage completion of the peoject at vear ard,

Council expects to recognise the contract labllily as income over the next twelve manths

{c) Significant changes in contract balances

The increase in contract assels are a resull of the complation of several projects in advance of all related grant fundmg
baing recaived. Many of these projects are awaiting tha final payrment of funds claimable on acouthial

Note 16. Trade and Other Payables

2024 2023
5°000 § 000

Credilors are recognised whan goods of sarvices are received. al the amount owed. Amaunts awing are uneecured and are
generally setiied on 7 or 30 day teims.

Current

Creditors and accruats T.424 8,007
Prepaid rates 5841 5241
Dther enfithemants 355 313
Total current payables 13.620 13,555
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Livingstone Shire Coungil e St 2

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2024

Note 17. Borrowings

2024 2023

$ ‘000 § 7000
Current _
Loans - Quasnstand Treasury Gorporation 6,255 5,958
Tolal current bommowings 6,255 5.956
Mon-current
Lioans - Queenstand Treasury Carporation 42,281 48438
Total non-cument bomowings 42,281 48 438
Reconciilation of Loon Movemants for the year
Loans - Queensland Treasury Corporation
Opering batance al beginning of financial year 54,395 549,958
Principal repayments 15,859 {5,563}
Beok value at end of financial year 48,536 54,395

The Inan market value at the reporting date was 547,863,813, This represents the value of the dabl if council rapaid it al that
date. Ag it Is the intention of councl to held the debt for its term, no provision is required to be made in ihesa accounls

Ho gssels have bean pladged a5 securily by counddl foramy liabillies; however il loans are gusranteed by |he Creensiand
Siate Government. Expecied final repaymant dates vary from 15 September 2028 1o 15 June 2038

Councdl currenlly has an approved warking capital facility with the Oueensland Treasury Corporation. This facility has a fimit of
510 milfion which s approved on a8 permanent basis subject 1o an annual review by the Quesnsiand Treasury Corporation and
Bepﬁrtmenl of Housing, Local Govemment, Plarining, and Public Works. Council has not Utiisad the facilily during 2003-24,

MNote 18, Provisions

Employee provisions

The provision for annual feave & based on the present value of remuneration rates that will be paid whemn the liability is expected
to be settfed &nd Inciudes relaied on-costs. As councll does nol have an unconditional fight 1o defir this lability bayond 12
months from the reporting date, annual leave is classified as & current liahility

The provizien tor long service leave s caloulated using curtent pay rates and projected fulure increases in thoso rates and
Includes related employes on-costs. This estimates are adjusted for the probabillly of the employee remaining in the coundl's
employmant or other asseciated employment which would resull in council being required to meel the liabiiity. Adjustments are
e made to allow for the proporiion of the benefil earmed fo date, fnd the resull is discounted 1o present vakie. The provision
Is discounted using ihe Commonwealth Bond yield rates,

Where employees have mel the prerequisie length of service and council does nal have an uncenditional nght to defer this
liabikty beyend 12 months from reporting date, lang sénvico feave ks classifiad as 8 cureni liabifity, Othenwisa long servics
leave is classified ae non-cumrent The 2021 Certilied Agreement provides for the payment of long service leave on a pro-raia
basis afer five yaars of conlinuaus sendee.

The provision for sick leave represents an obligation ansing ouwt of the 2021 Cerified Agreement which provides for the vesting
of unused slck feave and payment of up to $8 500 per employse on termination subject o meetng cerain eligitility criteris,
slich as leg years continuous service. The enlitiement is subject to & sunsel clause which expires on 30 September 2023

As set oul in the Cartified Agreement, the Rability = calcuiated using the amount of avallable leave in weeks multiplied by
4250 up to the maximuam smount of $6,500, The eslimates are adiusted for the probability of (e employes remaining in the
council's amployment that wowld resull in councll being required 1o meat the Hability. Adustments are then mado to allow lor
the proportien of the. benefit eamed to date, and the resull is discounted lo prasent value The peovision |s discounted using
the Commonwealth Bond vield rates

Faga 28 af B4

LIVINGSTONE SHIRE COUNCIL 2023-2024 ANNUAL REPORT



Livingstone Shire Council Financial Statements 2024

Motes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2024

Mote 18. Pravisions (continued)

Whars emgloyees Hiave mel thé prercquisite length of service and counail does not Rave an uncondiional rght to dofer this
fiability beyond 12 manths from reporting date, sick leave is classified as a current lisbillly. Olherwise sick leave |s classified
a5 non-currant,

Quarry restoration

The provision for quarmy restoration represents the present value of the anlicipated fulore costs associated wilth Ihe closure and
restoration of guarny 2itex. Thie calculation of the provision yse assumptions incloding apphication of envirenmental legisiation,
site closure dates, avallable lochnologies and engineering cost estimates. These uncedainties may result in' fulure actual
expendiiure differng from amounts corenlly provided The provision recognised for guamy resioration is reviewed al least
annually and is updated based on the facls and creumstances available: ab the time. Adjustments are made 1o allow fot
estimated inflafion of costs to the anlicipated date of axpendiure, and the resull is discounted 1o present value. The provision s
discounted using the Commenwealth Bond yield rates. As the guarries are on state reserves or private land which the Coundil
doeg not contral, the provision for restoration is freated ae an axpanse in ke year the provision is first recognised.

The projected cost rs $243,000 (undiscounted) and this cost ks expectad (o be incumed over the period 2025 to 2043,
Landfill restoration

Otligations for fulure landfill restotation work are determined annually, estimating the nature and exient of work essocinted
with the closure of the landfill tacilities, monitoring of historical residues and leaching on these sites. As council has 8 presenl
obligation, it Is probable that restoration work will be undestaken and a relisble estimate of the amount can be mads, il s
recognised as e provision. The calcuwlation of the provision use assumptions including application of emvironmental tegistation,
slte closure dates, avallable technologies and enginesring cost aslimales. These uncertainties may resull Iy fulure adiual
expendilure differing from amounts currenlly provided. Adjustmenls are then made to aliow for the proportion of the: banefil
aamed 1o date, and the result is discounted to present value, Tha provisian is discounted uging the Commonweaith Bond
yledd rates

The lardfil ks situated on council contralled land and is cassified as a sile improvement assel. The provision for restoration Is.
therefore, includéd in the cosl of the imprevements and ameortised over the expected uselul |ife of the landfifl cell

The projocted costis 518,128 264 (undiscounted) and this cost is expected to be Incurred aver the poriod 2028 o 2061

2024 2023
$'000 § 000
Current
Annusl leave 3318 ey
Long sesvice leave 4,238 4,338
Sick loave 408 432
Qisarry restoration 10 20
Total current provisions T.a72 7T
Non-current
Long service leave 700 906
Sick leava Eh 21
Quarry restoration 148 161
Landfili restoration 14208 11,037
Total non-current provisions 12,188 12125
Page 29 of 54
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Livingstone Shire Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2024

Note 18. Provisions [conlinued)

Delalls of movements in non-employee provisions

Quarry rehabilltation

Bakance al beginning of fnandial year

Amounts used

Increase In provision due o unwinding of discount
Pecreases n provision dus tochange In discount rate
Inereasel{decraase) in estimate of lulure cosl
Balance at end of financial year

Landfill restoration

Balance at beginning of financial year

increase in provision due to unwinding of discount
Decreas®s |0 provision due 1o changa |n discount rata
Increasa in estimate of future cost

Balance at end of financial year

Note 19. Other liabilities

Current

Waste levy refund received in advance
Wineamed revenie

Total current other liabllities

Non-current
Waste levy refund received in advanos

Tolal non-current other labllities

Flnancial Statements 2024

2024
$ 000

181
(2)
13
{1

133

158

11,037
447
(220)

11.299

2024

$'oo0

1,153
165

1.338

2.452
2,452

2023
$'000

194
i18)

(8}
181
8,225
{332)

11,037

2023
$ '000

1,120
227

1,347

3550
3,550

The Slate Government his made advance payments lo Council to mitigate the impacts en households for the estimeted fulune
costs of the State Waste Levy, As the payment was for a refund of Council's future Lavy expenses, the amount was recognised
a9 3 liakdlity and split betwesn curreni and non-current in accordance with the State's cafculations of the estimated anméal
charges, Revenua will be recognised in each subsequent year in accordance with these calculations
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Livingstone Shire Council

Motes to the Financial Statements
for the: year ended 30 June 2024

Note 20. Asset revaluation surplus

Thi asset revaluation surplus comprises revaluation moverments an propefty. plant and equiprent.

Movements in the asset revaluation surplus were as follows

Finzncial Stalements 2029

L ; ;,:j'zt :i*g::
Balance at beginning of financial year 260,564 104,526
Agustmens (o openng baance - 332
Mot adjustments o non-current assets at end of year to reflec! & change in
Land 14 5,861 1,384
Bulldings 14 4,795 12.512
Roads & drainage 14 - 73,986
Sewerage 1% - 7.290
Site improvemenis 14 6431
Watar 11 - 51,460
Bridge natwork " - 4,165
She improvermneants - Landfill rehabllidation asset 185 {1,522)
Balance at end of financial year 271,508 260564
Assel revaluation surplus analysis
2024 2023
- - $'000 § 000
The closing balance of the assel revaluation surpius camprises the following asser calagones:
Land 11,864 5,903
Buildings 26,491 21,686
Rosds & dramage BE.820 89,920
Sewerage 23,644 23,644
Sile MMprovamants 12,502 12,317
‘\Water 80,273 80,273
Brdge network 16811 16,8171
271,505 Eﬁ_léﬁﬁﬂ
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Livingstone Shire Council Financlal Simements 202

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year endad 30 June 2024

MNote 21. Commitments for expenditure

2024 2023
5000 § 000

(a) Contractual commitments

Centractunl commitments s end of financial year but not recognised in the financtal statements are as follows:

Waste serices 23.748. 7416
Walter and sewerage sarvices 4,588 8,814
1CT Services - 2,801
Oiher 4,097 33

33,344 22204

{t) Capital Commitments

Commitment for the construction of the following assets contracted for sl the reporting date but not recognised as
liabiities;

Praperty, plant and eguipment

Road, dramnage and bridge netwaork -4 0BS5S 1.895
Facitities a2 s
Water and sewar natwork 4 248 6,728
Wasto 174 112
CHher 283 -
Total commitments 8.832 B B35
These expenditures dre payable as follows:

Within thie next year 8,380 8218
Later then one year and nel Iater than 5 years 452 617
Total payable 8832 8,835

Note 22, Contingent liabilities

Details and estimates of maximun: amounts-of conlingent llabilidies are as foflows:

Local Government Mutual

The Councll is @ member of the local government mutual liability. seff-insurance pool, LGM Queensiand. In the avent of the
pool baing wound up o i s unable to meel its debts as Ihey fall due, the trust deed and rules provide that any accumulatad
daficit will ba met by he individual pool members in the same propostion as their contibution is to the total poo! contributions In
respact o any year thal a dafich arises. The latest audited finapcial staverments dated 30 June 2023 reported an accumaulatad
surplus and it |5 not anticipated any labiity will anse. '

Local Government Warkcare

CouncH i a member of the Queensiand focal government worket's comipansalion sell-nsufance scheme, Local Government
Workeare Under this scheme councll has provided an Indemnity lowards & bank guarantee to cover bad debts which may
remain should the self insurance licence boe canceliod and there were insufficiant funds available 1o cover outstanding
Habilittes. Only the Quoensiand Government's warkers compensation autherily may call on any part of the guarantes should
the above clrcumnstances arise. Al 30 June 2024, Council’s maximun exposure 1o the bank guarantes is §1,123,663.81,

Legal Claims .
Counch iz a defendant in & number of legal actions that have arsen as & resull of the opemabions of councl and Its cwnership
of public assets as al e reporting date. All llabiity claims are subject to review and are only provided for when gentitie and
nol contingent o afuture evenl. infarmation In respect of ndividual claims has not bean disclosed on.the basis that council
congsiders such disclosutes would sendusly prejadice the oufcome of These claims,

Poge 32 6154
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Livingstone Shire Council sl Sislamerts 204

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2024

Note 23. Superannualion

Councl cantributes 1o the LGIAzuper Regional Defined Benefits Fund (the scheme), al the rate of 12% for each permanent
employee wha is a defined benalit member, This rate is sel in accordance with the LGIAseper trust deed and may be varled on
the advice of an actuary. The Redional Defined Benefits Fund is 8 complying superannuation scheme for the purpose of the
Commuonwealth Suparannuation Industry (Supenasion) legistation and is alse governed by the Local Government Act 2008,
The scheme is managed by the LGIASuper frustes as trustes for LGIASuper irading as Brighter Super.

The scheme is a posled defined benafil plan and it & not in accordance with tha deed 1o allocate obilgations, plan assets
and costs at the council leval,

Any amount by which the schems s over or under furded may affect future contnibution rafe obligafions, but has not been
recognised as an assel or fability of the counci.

Technically counce may be |lable to the scheme for a partion of anolher jocal governmenis’ obligations should that local
government be unable to meat them, However the risk of this cocurring is mmmﬂfwwnnd in accondanca with the LGIAsupear
trust deed changes o council’s obligations will only ke made on the sdvice of an acluary,

The fast completed actuara! assessment of the scheme as required Undar Superannuation Prudential Standard 160 was
undertaken as al 1 July 2021, The actuary indicated thal “Af the valuation date of 1 July 2021, the net assets of the scheme
exceeded the vested benefite and |he scheme was in a satisfactory fnancial position 8s at the valuation date.” The measure of
vestad benafits reprosents tho value of benefil entitements shotld all participating employees voluntarily exit the schame. The
countil |5 not aware of anything thal has happened since Ihat time thal kndicates the assels of the scheme are not sulficient
to meet the vested benefils. as al the reporting date. '

No changes have been made to prescribed employer contribulions which remain al 12% of employes salary of wages and
inere are no known requiraments to change the rate of contributions.

Thae st triemnint actuarial review 15 nol due untid 1 July 2024,
Thia maost significant risks that may resull In LGIAsuper Incteasing the conttibulion rale. on the advice of the acluary, are:

Irwestment risk - the risk that the scheme’s Investrmant refurnes will be lower than as_:urns'ar.' and additlonal contributions are
needed 1o furd the shodfall

Salary growlh risk < tha risk thal wages or salares will ise more rapidly than assumed. increasing vested benefits to be funded.

2024 2023
Hiitam, % ‘000 £ '000
Suparannuation contribullons made (o the Reglonal Defired Benalits Funa 78 By
Other superannuation contributions for employess 3735 3840
Total superannuation confributions paid by Council for
employens ! 3.4813 a.727
Page 33 of 54

LIVINGSTONE SHIRE COUNCIL 2023-2024 ANNUAL REPORT

58



59

Livingstone Shire Council

Motes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 20 June 2024

Financial Slatemenms 2024

Note 24, Reconciliation of net resull for the year 1o net cash inflow/(outflow) from

operating activities

2024
$'000

Wet opetating result from statement of comprehensive Income 28377

Han-cash items

Depreciation and amariisation 33,503
Other net assel adiusiments ~
33.503

Lossesl(naing) recognised on falr value re-measuremonts through the income statemont
Umwinding of discount rales on resioralion provisions B0
460
Invesiing and developmant activities
Met (profityloss on disposal of assets {178
Loss on write-off of assets 3921
Capital granis and contributions {29,132)
Other capital moome 133)
(25.422)
Changes In operating assets and liabllities:
{Increase Mdecrease in recelvahies (aT8)
Increasai{decrease) in provision for doubifol dets (130)
{Increase docraase i invantones 131
{increasa)decteass in olhar agsels 64
increasaf{dactessa) in payables 23
Increasel{decrease) in employes leave entiflermnents o7
Increasef{degrease) in other provisions 123
increasalidecraase) in other liabifies {1,107}
{Intrease)/decraase in fand held for sale 1999
1,485
Met cash provided from operating aclivities from Wlie statemean! of cash
fiovws 39,403
Note 25 Recanciliation of liablliies arising from finance aclivities
Asat 30008/2%:
" Opaning
Balance Cashflows
5000 5000
2024
Beorrawings 54,285 (5.658)
54 395 {5.855)

LIVINGSTONE SHIRE COUNCIL 2023-2024 ANNUAL REPORT

2023
$000

65946

30.718
(1.841)
28,877

295
295

(82
7.653

(41,458)

(33.867)

225
131
(£78)
(2,319
1,304
212
(18}
741
{944
[9586)

31,298

As at 30706124
Closing
balance

5000

48,538
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Livingstone Shire Council

Notes to the Financial Statements

for ihe year ended 30 June 2024

Financiai Statements 2024

MNote 25. Reconciliation of liabilities arising from finance activities

2023

MNote 26, Restated Balances

Nature of prior-period error

Bin at 3006722
Opening
Balance Canhfiows
5000 5 000
58,558 . |5.563)
59,958 {5.563)

As u um
Closing
balance

§ '000

54.385
54,385

As part of counoil processes to battér aiign financial and assel managemenl principles. practices, and systems, councl has
invested significant fime and resources info validating its asset data. Using a process to compare councl’s geegraphical
Irformation system (GIS) and ils assel eaisler, and sike inspections as rquired, 1 has been identified that assets with &
writhen down value of 54,804,960 shouid have been disposed of prior to 1 July 2022, As a resull, council’s proparty, plant and

aquipment halances wane overstaled as wes council’s depraciation expense

The assats Included:

E

Assats identified Mrough rengwal of lenan! agreements 1o nod be councl owned.
Privale agsets incorroctly rocogrised as being council owned and maintaned
Agsets which were previousty ideniffind for disposal but not actioned.

Duplicate assels crealed during amalgamation and de-amalgamation thil were not comectly mapped to the GIE ar

correctly adjusted in the asset systam and subsequently brought to account incomectiy,
i Assetls found 19 nod oxist hased on advice from feld crews investigations.

Additionally, eouncll idemified some Infrastructure assets such as footpaths, slomwater and sewer components. and road
madian strips which had nol previously been recognised with 2 total value of 51,185 448, understaling Councir's capital revenue

and depreciation expense

Exizfing Assets Nol Reduction in

Aszsol Class " Previously Disposals Net Movemerit Accumulated

Recognised Depreciation
Resds and drainagea $1,185.157 1$3.719.116) 52.533.959) 5806820
Sawe 510,288 (S4.480) 45,809 53,666
Water - (82,061, 780) (52,061, 780) 480,327
Site Improvements . - (8260.118) {$260.118) 5108.902
Bulldings - {5384,477) {5384 477) §225,207
Total $1,195446 (58,429,872 $5,234.526) $1.625,012

To comect the impact of these prior penod errons on coundl's propesty, plant, snd eduiprmant balanoes, councll has adjuated
ha apening balances at 1 July 2022 with the adjustmants taken to retained suplus: No adjusiments wenn made lo council's
depraciation as the pel impact was Immatertal
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Livingstone Shire Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2024

Note 26. Restaled Balances (continued)

Fmanciat Stilements 2024

Comparatives have boen changed 1o reflect the correct amourls and detads-of the nat adjustments impacting relevant financial

statement ting tems are as below:

Changes to the opening Statement of Financial Position at 1 July 2022

Statement of Financial Position

Hioie

Other assets

Fropery. plant and eguipment "
Property, plant and equipment - acowumidated

dapreciation L
Total assets

Total liabilities

Retained surplus
Assel revaluation surplus
Total community equity

Note 27. Events after the reporting period

Original
Balance
1 July, 2022

$ 000

113,720
1,516,702

{425,877}
1,204,445

106,688

962,899
104,858
1,097,757

There wire no material adjusting or non-adjsting events after the repoding period

Nofe 28, Finanaal mstruments

{a) Financial assets and financial liabilities

Council has the following categones of financial assels and financial llabiies:

= Cash and cash egiivalents
¢ Recaivablips

«  Payables

+  Borrowings

Impact
Incroasa/
(decroase)

$'000
{5,235)

1625
{3.610)

{3.610)

{3.610)

Eamud
Balance
1 July, 2022

% 000

113,720
1.511 467

(4:24,352)
1,200,835

106.688

BE9.269
104,858
1,004,147

Council has exposuro 1 the follewing riske adsing from financial instraments; (1) credit risk, (i1} lquidity risk, and {iil) market risk,

Thie nate provides information (both qualitative and quantitalive) lo assist statement Users avaluate the significance of financil
irstruments on tha Gouncil's financaal position and fingncial performance; including the nalure and extent of fisks and how thea

Council manages thess exposures

(b) Financial risk management

Council s responsibla for the establishment and oversigh! of the fsk managemen! Famework, Hgether with developing,

approving and monitonng risk managemant policees.

Coundl's Audit Rigk and Improvement Commities (ARalC] oversees and provides guidance on the deveicpment of policies
for overall sk management, as wall as specifically lor managing markel. lguidity and credit rish.
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for the year ended 30 June 2024

Note 28. Financial instruments (continued)

Council's rigk managemntent policies are established fo idontify and analyse the risks faced, to sel appropriate limits and controls
and fo monftor these risks and adherance against limits. Counall aims o manage valatilty to minimise pataritial adverse effects
on its financial performance

The ARalC oversees how management monitors compliance with Council's risk management policies and procedures and
reviews the sdeguacy of the nsk management framawork in relalion 1o the risks feced by council. This commitiee |s assisted
In ity oversight rala by ntemnal audil. Council has dutsourced s internal audil function to underake the planned intemal audi
work program, the results of which are reported to the ARaIC.

(c) Credil risk

“Credil risk |s the risk of financial joss f a counterparty o a financial instrument falls i mest its confractual obligations, These
ohiigations principally arise from council's investments with and receivables from cusiomers.

The credit risk of financial assets thal have been recognised in the Statement of Financial Positon 18 the carnpng amount net
ol any impairmenl. Mo significant concentration of credil dek kas been identified, as exposure is spread over a large mumber
of counterpartias and cuslomers. Exposura to oredd risk is managed through regular-analysis of counteérparty ability 1o mee
paymen obligationa. The carrying amount of financial assets represants the maximum oredil exposure,

Investmants in financial instrumeanis are required ta be mpde with 1he Queensiand Treasury Corparation or financial institutions
n Astralia, in lne with the requirements of the Stalutery Bodies Financlal Arcangamenis Act 1982, Mo coflateral is keld as
sacunity relating to the financial assats of council. The camying amounts of financial assels al the end of the reparting pariod
represent the maximum exposure to credil risk for coungil. '

Council has assessed its axposune 10 cradit risk at the mporng date, In ihe case of rates regaivabies, councll has the powar
io sell the property 1o recover defaulled amounts and in the: case of sundry deblors, Councll assesses the credi risk bafore
providing goods or senvices and applies normal business credit protection procedures o minimise risk, Given the vast majorfty
of councl's credit risk relatos to general ates and ulikty charges receivables and other recetvables due from the Queensland
and Commonmwealth governmaenis. council’s exposure fo credil risk is not material af the reperting date.

(d) Liquidity nsk

Liquidity risk retars lo the snuation where Councll may encounter difficulty in meeding financial obligeations as and when they
fall due. Council s exposed (o lquidity risk through its normal course of businass. Council's objettive is io mantain adeguate
access fo Highty iquid invesimenis and bomowings

Council's approach to managng Bogusdity is to ensure, as much as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity 1o meat its labifities
when they are die, under both normal and stressed conditions, withoul incurring unacceptabls losses or riskmg damage fo
coungil's reputation. This is done by maintaining sufficient cash deposits and undrawn facilifies lo cater for unexpected volatilily
i cash flows. Councll has in place a warking capital faciily with the Queensland Treasury Corporalion {QTC). Further detaiis
on this laciity are disciosed in Mote 17

The foltowing lable smts oul the fiquidity sk in relation to financlal Nabifitles held by council. |1 represents the remaining
contractus! cash fpws (principal and interest) of financial Nahiltles at the and of the reporing period.

Total

Oto1 1to 5 Over § contractual Carrying
year YERIS years cash flows amount
$ '000 § 000 $ '000 £'000 £ 000

024
Payablos T.424 - - 7 A24 7,424
Loans - QTC B422 3387 15,807 57916 48,536
15,845 33687 15,807 5,340 55860
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Livingstone Shire Council Financial Statements 2024

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 Jupe 2024

Note 28. Financial instruments (continued)

Taotal

Oto1 1105 Owver 5 contrattual Carrying
yiar years years cash flows amount
5000 5000 §'000 5000 $ 000

2023
Payabies 8,001 - - 8,001 8,001
Loans -QTC Ba22 33,687 24,229 65,338 54,305
16,423 33,887 24229 74:338 62,386

The ouiflows in the above table are not expecied 1o ocour signiicantly @arier and are not éxpocted fo be lor significantly
different amaounis than indicaled in tha latde.

{e) Market risk

Market rigk b the risk that changes in markel indices; such as interast rates. will affect the Councils incomeé or the valoe of
its hioltfings of financial instruments.

fnforoes! rald sk
Interest rate risk refers 1o the possible fluctuations caused by changes in the vadue of Interesl boaring finenclal instroments as
@ result of market rates. Coundl i= exposed to inderest rate risk throagh investments and borrowings with QTC.

Council has access o a mix of varable and fixed rale funding oplians throdgh QOTC so that Intedsest rate risk exposure can
be minimised.

Council does not account for any fheed-rate finandlal assets of financial fabilites at fair value through the profitor loss, therelone
@ change |n interesi rates al the reporting date would not affect profit o loss.

Council's Interest rafe senaifivity to an expectad 1% flucluation in interest rates, (F all other variables were held constant, is

as folows:
Met carrying Met result Equity
amount 1% Increase 1% decrease 1% increase 1% decrease
$'000 5000 §'000 5000 $ 000
2024
Finantial agsats 122,853 1,228 (1,228} 1,228 (1.228)
Financial liabilites {48 536) (485) 485 {485) 485
Net T4.317 T43 {743} T43 {743}
2023
Financisl assels 104,744 1.047 [1,047) T.047 (1,047}
Financial llabilities {54,385] 1544) 5ad (544) 544
Net 5(), 349 BO3 {5031 503 B03)

Note 29. National competition policy

Counctl applies the compatitive code of conduct 1o the tollowing activities:
Water and Sewerage Services

Waste Services

Bullding Cerification

This requires the application of full cost pricing, ldentifying the cost of cammunity service obligations (CS0) and efiminating
the advantages and disadvaniages of public ownership within that activity

Page 36 af 54
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Livingstone Shire Council

Financial Swtements 2024

Motes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 June 2024

Note 29, National competition policy (confinued)

The CS0 valua is determined by councl and reprasents an activities costs which would not be incurred i the primary objective
of the aclivities was 1o make a profit. Council provides funding from general revenue to the business aclivity (o cover the cost
of providing non-commaraial community services or costs desmed bo be CS50's by council

The following activity statements are for activitles subject te the competitive code of conduct:

ﬂmr and
Sewerage Waste Bullding
Services Services Cortification
$ 000 5 '000 $ 000
Revenue for services provided 1o the Coundi| a8 740 -
Revenue for services provided lo extemal chents 35797 9,528 &23
Community service obligations = 534 -
36,635 17,192 623
Less: expanditure (32,145) {10,204) 274
Surplusi{deficit) 4640 e 348
Description of C50's provided to business activitles:
Actual
Activities C50 descriplion $'000
Waste Services Waste vouchars 450
Wasie Servides Chirity wasté dispasal i
\Waste Servigas Collection, tranaport & disposal services for
VWaste for residents and public areas on Greal
Keppal island B3

Note 30, Transactions with related parties

{a) Subsidiaries

Counch his no interash in any- subskdiaties.

(b) Associates

Council has ne interests in any associales

(¢} Joint veniures

Councll has no inlerests i any [olnt vaniures:

(d) Key management personnel

Transactions with key management personnel

Hey management personnel (KMP) inchude the positions of Mayor, Councifors, Chief Execulive Officer, Execulive Directors,
Chis! Fimanclal Officer, Chiel Information Officer and Chie! Human Resources Officer

Fags 39.0f 54
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Livingstone Shire Council Financisl Ststaments 2024

Notes to the Financial Statements
for (e year ended 30 June 2024

Mote 30. Transactions with related parties (continued)

The compensabon paid 1o KMP compnses:

2024 2023

5000 £ 000

Shon-tarm employes benafils 2139 1,950
Post-amployment benalils 236 b
Long-térm banefits 3-1 k)
Tarmination banefits - -
Total 400 2,254

Pleasa refer to delasled remunaration disclosures that are provided in Council's annual repor.

{e) Other Related Parties

Other related parties include the close family mambers of KMP and any entities contrelled o jointy controllad by KMP.or
thelr close family members. Close family mambers Include & spouse, child and dependent of a KMP or thair spouse and
may include exendad family members if they could ba expected o influence, or be influenced by, KMP. Datails of
transactions between council and otk related parties are disclosed balow:

Transactions with other related paries

Amount of
transactions
during year
= $ '000
024
Purchase of materials and sarvices from entities controlied by key managemen!
personnel or their cdose family mambers 439
438
2023
Purchase of materials and sarvices from entities conlrolied by key managemeni
personnel o their close family mambers ' 388
386

Council purchased the lofloving services from enfiies contraliod by key managemant parsonnel or 1helr closa family members

Cataring mppiies of $8.495 ware purchased from lfh‘aaliﬂ{a Cater Ply Lid during 2023-24 Total purchases in 2022-23 weré
£4.544., Close family members of the former Mayor had control over the operations of this cormpany,

Professional pholography services of 36,037 were purchased rom Levi Applelon Studios during 2023-24. Tolal purchases in
2022-23 waere §32 461, [uring both finencial years a ciose family member of the current Mayor had control ovar the cperations
of this entity.

Magazine and newspaper supplies of §7 282 were purchased fram Capricorn News (MeClelland investiments (QLD) Pty Lid)
during 2023-24. Tota! purchases m 2022-23 ware $7,910. Durng balh financiel years a closs famdy membaer of the Chisl
Expeutive Qfficer had control avar tha operations of this company.

Stationery and office supplies of $37,631 were purchased from Office Choice Yeppoon during 2023-24. Total purchases in
2022-23 were $38,244, During both finencial years a close famity member of the Chilaf Executive OMficer had control ovar the
opartations of this company

Statipnery and offics supplles of $9 068 wers purchased from Office Nalional XPress (Tristee for the McClelland Family Trust}

during 2023-24, During the Tinancial year a close family member of the Chief Execulive Officer had eontrol over thie operations
of this company.

Page 40 of 54
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Livingstone Shire Council e Sislemers 204

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year anded 20 June 2024

Note 30. Transactions with related parties (contmued)

Advartising of §1,800 was purchased from Spectalor News Megazine during 2023-24. Total purchases i 2022-23 were 52 563
During both financial years a close family member of Cr Watson had control aver the aperations of the company

Dunng 2023-24 payments totalling $368,701 ware made to Capacom Toursm and Economic Development Limlted in
arcordance with council's Capricorn Enterprse Patnarship Agroement. Total payments in 2022-23 were 5300,000. During
beth financlal years Cr Watson was'a membar of the Board of Directors and is considered (o hold significant influsnce over
Ihe operationa of the company,

Al purehases werne al s Iun_n.!.h and wera in fhe nomal course of councifs oparatiohs

() Quistanding balances
Thers were no’material outstanding batarces owing from related parties at reporting date.

(g) Loans and guarantees to/from related parties

Councll does not make loans to or recelve loans from related parties. No guarantees have been provided

(h) Commitments io/from other related parties

As at 30 June 2024, Council has committed $275. 792 for future expenditure under the Capricom Enlerprize Partnership
- Agreement with Capricom Tourism and Econamic Development Limited.

(i) Transactions with related parties that have not been disclosed

Most of the eniities and people that are related parties of councll live: and operate within the Livingsiene Shire Coundl region,
Therefore on a regular basis ardinary cilizen ransactions ccour between council and ity related parties Some examples
include:

- Bormowing books from coundl's libranes -

- Dog registration )

- Lodgemeant of development applications

- Payment of rates and/or ulility charges

= Uisa af councifs swimming poots

Council hes not disclosed transactions ol this lype; whare they are made on the same lerms and condilions available to the
ganeral public,
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Livingstone Shire Council Financial Siatements 3024

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2024

Mote 31. Council information and contact detaiis

Principal place of business: Malling sddrass; Telephone; 1300 780 914
4 Lagodn Place PO Box 2292 Facsimile: O7 4836 4776
YEFPDON QLD 4703 YEPPOON QLD 4703 Irternet www Ivingstone_qid.gov. au
Email: enquires@ivingstone qid gov.au
Opening hours: AEN; 95 399 253 048
&:00am - 5:00pm
Monday to Friday
Mayor: Councillors: Auditors:
Adam Belot (from 29 March 2024 Adam Belot (lo 28 March 2024) Crusensland Audlt Office
Andrew Ireland (1o 28 March 2024 Patrick Eastwood Level 14, 53 Albert Streat
Andrea Friend Brishane QLD 4000
Acting Chief Executive Officer: Glenda Mather
Alasiair Dawson Rhodes Walson

Lance Warcon {from 3 Agril 2024
Chint Swadling {lo 3 April 2024)
¥Wade Rothery (from 3 April 2024
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Livingstone Shire Council Rt e

General Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2024

Managemeril Certificale
har fhe year anded 30 June 2024

These General Purpese Financlad Statemanis have been prepared pursuant tosections 176 and 177 of the Local Gavernmend
Regulation 2012 {ihe Regulation) and othar prescrbed reguirements.

In-atcordance with Section 212(5) of the Regulalion, we certify that.

1. the prescribed mequirements of the Losal Government Act 2009 and Local Gowernment Regulation 2012 for the
pstablishmant and keaping af accaunts have hean compiied with in.all matenal respects; and

i, the Genaral Purpose Flmancia! Statemonts; as sef oul on pages 4 lo 42, present & troe and fair view, in accordance
with Australian Accounting Standsrds, of the Council's ransactions for the financial year and financial posilion at the
end of the year,

7 p—
Adam Balot Alnstalr Davean
Mayor Acting Chief Executive Officer
08 October 2024 08 Gotoper 2024

Eape 43 of 54

LIVINGSTONE SHIRE COUNCIL 2023-2024 ANNUAL REPORT 68



® Queensland
® ® Audit Office

Better public services

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the councillors of Livingstone Shire Council

Report on the audit of the financial report
Opinion
| have audited the accompanying financial report of Livingstone Shire Council {the council).

The financial report comprises the statements of financial position as at 30 June 2024, the
statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and statements of
cash flows for the year then ended, notes to the financial statements including material
accounting policy information and the certificate given by the Mayor and Acting Chief
Executive Officer.

In my opinion, the financial report:

a) gives a true and fair view of the council’s financial position as at 30 June 2024, and of their
financial petformance for the year then ended; and

b) complies with the Local Government Act 2008, the Local Government Regulation 2012 and
Australian Accounting Standards.

Basis for opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with the Auditor-General Auditing Standards, which
incorporate the Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Audifor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial report section of
my report.

| am independent of the council in accordance with the ethical requirements of the
Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (including Independence Standards) (the Code) that are relevant
to my audit of the financial report in Australia. | have also fulfilled my other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code and the Auditor-General Auditing Standards.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion.

Other information
The councillors are responsible for the other information.

The other information comprises the information included in the entity’s annual report for the
year ended 30 June 2024, but does not include the financial report and our auditor’s report
thereon.

At the date of this auditor’s report, the available other information in Livingstone Shire
Council's annual report for the year ended 30 June 2024 was the current year financial
sustainability statement, current year financial sustainability statement - contextual ratios
(unaudited), unaudited long-term financial sustainability statement and annual report.
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My opinion on the financial report does not cover the other information and accordingly | do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. However, as required by the Local
Government Regulation 2012, | have formed a separate opinion on the current year financial
sustainability statement.

In connection with my audit of the financial report, my responsibility is to read the other
information when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
inforrmation is materially inconsistent with the financial report and my knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work | have performed, | conclude that there is a material misstaterment of
this information, | am required to report that fact. | have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the councillors for the financial report

The councillors are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true
and fair view in accordance with Local Government Act 2009, the Local Government
Regulation 2012 and Australian Accounting Standards, and for such internal control as the
councillors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that is
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

The councillors are also responsible for assessing the council's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the going
cohcern basis of accounting unless it is intended to abolish the council or to otherwise cease
operations of the council.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial report

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a
whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian
Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of this financial report.

A further description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial report is located at the
Auditing and Assurance Standards Board website at:

https://www.auasb.gov.au/auditors responsibilities/ar4.pdf

This description forms part of my auditor's report.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

In accordance with s. 40 of the Auditor-General Act 2009, for the year ended 30 June 2024:
a) | received all the information and explanations | required

b) | consider that, the prescribed requirements in relation to the establishment and keeping
of accounts were complied with in all material respects.
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Prescribed requirements scope

The prescribed requirements for the establishment and keeping of accounts are contained in
the Local Government Act 2009, any other Act and the Local Government Regulation 2012.
The applicable requirements include those for keeping financial records that correctly record
and explain the council's transactions and account balances to enable the preparation of a
true and fair financial report.

Joacoues Cottzee

10 October 2024
Jacques Coetzee Clueensland Audit Office
as delegate of the Auditor-General Brisbane
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Livingstone Shire Council Firancial Statements 2024

Current Year Financial Sustainability Statement

Targat Actuai 5 Yr Av.
Tier 4 2024 2020-24
Audiled ratios
Councils performance #l 30 June 2024 against key financial mtios and targels,
Liguidity
1. Unrestrictad cash expensa coveraga ratio
Tonal cash and equrvalents add current investmants add
avaifable ongoing GTC working capital tmit less extamally Grealar 14,2
resiricted cash %12 than 4 munl'mn A
Total operating expenditura less depreciation and amortisation miths

fass inance cosls

Tha unmastricted cash expanse cover ralio is an indicator of the unconstrained hguidity avallatie to a councl 1o meet ongong
and emergent financial demands, which is.a key component to sedvancy, It represents the number of manths & council can
continue oparating based on cument monthly expenses:

Operating Performance
2. oﬁmrmg surplus ratio
Operating resudl Graalar
1 g
Total operating revenus Tham 0% e s

The oieraling surplus ratio is an indicator of the exient fo which GRetating ravenues goneratod cover coeratonal expenses.
Ay operating surpius would be avaltable for capital funding of other pusposes.

3. Operaling cashrafip )
Operating resull dd depreciation and amonisation add finance cosis Greadar

4. 50%: 31.05%
Total aperating revenue than 0% s

The oparating cash ratie i 8 maasure of counaif's ability to cover its cofe operalional expanses and penedate a cash surplus:
exciuding depreciation, amortisation, and finance costs.

Aszet management

d_ Asset sustainability ratio
Capital expendifure on rapiacemant of infrastraciune assels (rennwals) Grigater 30.87%

Deprectation expanditure on infrostructure assats Han B0%. S2.29%

The assel sustamabiity rato approximates the exient to which {he infrasiruciure assels managed by a councll are baing
raplaced as they reach the end of heir usetul ves,

5. Assol consumption ritio
Wiitten down replacement cosl of depreclable infrasiruciune assefs Greatar

6. T1.
Current replacermant cost of depreciable mfrastructure assels than G0% RDTS I

Trie asset consumption ratic approximates the extent to which council's infrastruciure sssals have baen consumed companed
1o what |t would cost 1o bulld & new asset with the same benetil Lo the community
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Livingstone Shire Council Finaricial Statements 2024

Current Year Financial Sustaipability Statement (continued)

Target Actual 5 ¥r Av.
Tiar 4 2024 202024
Debt servicing capacity
6. Leverage ratio
Book value of dabt
Tatal operating revenue less lalal sperating expenditure add depresiation 0 - 3 tres 1.2 times 1.9 timas
and amorisation

The leverage ralic is an indicator of @ counds abdity to repay s existng debt, It measures the retative size of the councils

‘detit to 18 opesating parformance

Mote 1 - basis of preparation

Tha current yaar financial sustainabilty statement is prepared in accondance with the requirements of the Local Government
Fegulatidn 2012 and the Financial Managemant (Sustainability} Guidehne 2024, The amaunis used to calculate the B
reported maasures ate prepared on an accrual basis and aré drawm from the councils audited general purpose financial
statements for the year anded 30 June 2024, )

Pape 47 of B3
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Livingstone Shire Council ‘Financlat Sumemenis 2024

Certificate of Accuracy (audited ralios)

This cumeni-year financial sustalnabilily slaterment has been prepared porseant to Secilon 178 of the Local Government
Regufation 2012 {the Regulation).

In accordance with Secllon 212{5) of the Regulation we cedily thal ihis currenl year inancial susialrabilily stalemenl hes
been sccurately calculated

Adzm Bolat Arastar Dawstn
Mayor Acting Chief Executive Officer
08 Dulober 2024 02 Octobes 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the councillors of Livingstone Shire Council

Report on the Current-Year Financial Sustainability Statement — audited ratios
Opinion

| have audited the accompanying current year financial sustainability statement of
Livingstone Shire Council for the year ended 30 June 2024, comprising the statement,

explanatory notes, and the certificate of accuracy given by the Mayor and the Acting Chief
Executive Officer.

In accordance with s.212 of the Local Government Regulation 2012, in my opinion, in all
material respects, the current year financial sustainability statement of Livingstone Shire
Council for the year ended 30 June 2024 has been accurately calculated.

Basis of opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with the Auditor-General Auditing Standards, which
incorporate the Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the current year financial
sustainability statement section of my report.

| am independent of the council in accordance with the ethical requirements of the
Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board APES 110 Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (including Independence Standards) (the Code) that are relevant
to my audit of the statement in Australia. | have also fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code and the Auditor-General Auditing Standards.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion.

Emphasis of matter — basis of accounting

| draw attention to Note 1 which describes the basis of accounting. The current year financial
sustainability statement has been prepared in accordance with the Financial Management
(Sustainability) Guideline 2024 for the purpose of fulfilling the council’s reporting
responsibilities under the Local Government Regulation 2012. As a result, the statement
may not be suitable for another purpose. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Other Information
The councillors are responsible for the other information.

The other information comprises the information included in the entity’s annual report for the
year ended 30 June 2024, but does not include the financial sustainability statement and our
auditor's report thereon.

At the date of this auditor’s report, the available other information in Livingstone Shire
Council’s annual report for the year ended 30 June 2024 was the general-purpose financial
statements, current-year financial sustainability statement - contextual ratios (unaudited),
unaudited long-term financial sustainability statement, and the annual report.
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My opinion on the current year financial sustainability statement does not cover the other
information and accordingly | do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
However, as required by the Local Government Regulation 2012, | have formed a separate
opinion on the general-purpose financial report.

In connection with my audit of the financial sustainability statement, my responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial sustainability statement and my knowledge obtained
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work | have performed, | conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this information, | am required to report that fact. | have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the councillors for the current year financial sustainability
statement

The councillors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the current year
financial sustainability statement in accordance with the Local Government Regulation 2012.
The councillors responsibility also includes such internal control as the councillors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation and fair presentation of the statement that is
accurately calculated and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the current year financial sustainability
statement

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the current year financial
sustainability statement as a whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of this statement.

My responsibility does not extend to forming an opinion on the appropriateness or relevance
of the reported ratios, nor on the council’s future sustainability.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, | exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. | also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the statement, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the council’s internal control.

) Evaluate the appropriateness of material accounting policy information used and the
reaschableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the council.
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| communicate with the council regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that | identify during my audit.

jﬁcg&ﬂ%’/ Coretzee 10 October 2024

Jacgues Coetzee Queensland Audit Office
as delegate of the Auditor-General Brisbane
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Livingstone Shire Council T

Current Year Financial Sustainahility Statement

Target Actusl 5Yr Av.
Tiar & 2024 2020-24

Contextual ratios {unaudited)

Financial Capacity

1, Council comrolied revonus

Net ratas, levies and charges add fees and charges - A BATO% g1.35%,
Total oparatng revenus: - :

Council controlled revenus is anindicator of a councils inancial flaxibllity. abilily to infiuance A5 operating incorse, and capacily
to respand to unexpeciad financial shocks.

2. Populaiion growth
Prior year estimaled poputalion

- e 2T 1.95%
Previous year estmated poputation ¥ o - »

Pepulaton growih is akey driverof a counce’s opesating income, service needs, and infrastruclure requiremants info the futire

Nate 1 - basis of preparation

Thie eurrant year financial sustamability stalement is a specal purpese slaloment prapaned in accordance wilh the requirements
of the Local Govermmen! Reguiabion 2072 and the Financial Management {Sustainabllity} Guideline 2024, The amounis usad
1o calculate fhe repored measures are prepared on an accrual basis and are drawn from the Counci’s audiled genecal purposs
financial statoments for the year ended 30 June 2024,

Peigh 50,00 54
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Livingstone Shire Council Finanginl Stalemints 224

Certificate of Accuracy (contextual ratios - unaudited)
This curment-year fnancial sustainabliity siatemen! has been prepared pursuanl to Section 173 of the Local Goverriman!
Fagulation 2012 (the Regulationg,

In accordance with Section 212(%) of the Regulation we cerfify thal this current year financial sustainability staternent fas
been accurately calculated,

Adaf Beln —

Alastalr Dawson
Mayor Acting Chief Exocutive Officer
09 Cctober 2024 08 Octobar 2024
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T 5 4 Fin ol Statemants 2024
Livingstone Shire Council o

Unaudited Long Term Financial Sustainability Statement

This long-lerm nancial sustainabllity statement has been prepared pursusnl Io Seclion 178 of Ihe Locs! Governmen
Regufation 2072 (the Regulation)

I accondance with Section 212(5) of the Regulstion we cetify that (Kis long-tacm finuncial sustainabilify siatement has been
scourataly calculated.

e (2

Adam 'Ela!{'l,l- Alastalr Dawson
Mayor Acting Chief Executive Officor
08 Qctober 2024 09 Oclober 2024
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